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Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange of HopdiiKoted take no responsibility for the contents of this annoumtemeke no representation as to its
accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liabiligtsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upontibke or any part of the contents of this announcement.
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(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
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ANNOUNCEMENT OF 2012 ANNUAL RESULTS
SUMMARY
Financial

The Board of Directors of Semiconductor Manufacturing hatonal Corporation (“SMIC” or the “Company”) is please@dtmounce the audited consolidated results of the Corfpathe year
ended December 31, 2012.

Highlights include:

Record sales of US$1,701.6 million in 2012, a 29.0% increasef8$1h,319.5 million in 2011, primarily due to an increase inall/erafer shipments.
Gross margin increased to 20.5% in 2012 from 7.7% in 2011, aslaokimproved utilization and manufacturing efficiency

Capital expenditures decreased to $499.3 million in 2012 frab@&E51 million in 2011.

Net cash flow from operating activities was US$435.2 millio2012 compared to US$379.4 million in 2011.

Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Compaag US$22.8 million in 2012 compared to a loss of US$246.8 miHian11.

This announcement is made pursuant to Rule 13.49(1) Biules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Steichange of Hong Kong Limited.

The Board of Directors of Semiconductor Manufacturing hattonal Corporation (“SMIC” or the “Company”) is please@imounce the audited consolidated results of the Corfpathe year
ended December 31, 2012 as follows:



Change of Accounting Standards

The accounts of the Company for the year ended 31 Decembea20fizpared in accordance with International FinaReglorting Standards (“IFRS”). This represents a chamtpe
accounting standards adopted for the preparation of acémmtprior years when the accounts were prepared in@aocoe with accounting principles generally accepteceitlfited States
(“US GAAP"). The Company is dual-listed on the New Yot&k Exchange and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. The Cgropliaves that the accounts prepared in accordanceRRAB Will
improve comparability with peers within the semiconduatdustry and reduce the cost of financial reporting. Gtwpany considers that the change in accounting starfdamis)S GAAP to
IFRS does not have a material impact on the accounts Gfdimpany for the year ended 31 December 2012. Notes 2 ance4Mbtbs to The Consolidated Financial Statements” provide
information on this including the effect of the trarmitand comparative information as of 1 January 2011 and 31 Dexc261il and for the year ended 31 December 2011. As g cestdin US

GAAP figures as of 1 January 2011, 31 December 2011 ancefgedns then ended, have been reclassified to confoFR& |
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Adjustment After Publication Of US GAAP Quarterly Results

The Company publishes unaudited financial results fdn gaarter on a voluntary basis. After the publicationr@fritial results for the three months ended 31 December 201t2:ilast
quarterly results for the year 2012, the Company hae weo further adjustments during the preparation ofiityéar financial results which impacted on the stetat of profit or loss of the
Company. The adjustments were:

(1) areversal of US$6.9M land appreciation tax provision rel&inisposal of employees’ living quarters
as a result of finalization of tax filing after eampirelease; and

(2) anaccretion of interest of US$1.2M on non-controllingriest was reclassified to finance cost due to the IFERR&ecsion as explained in note 4 to the financial statsn

The sum of unaudited profit for the year for the four gurarof 2012 as previously published by the Company was US$1Gdhnmlaccordance with US GAAP. As a result of the alone
adjustments, the audited profit for the year ended 31 Deare®912 was increased by US$5.7 million to US$22.5 million, iardenice with IFRS.

Cautionary Statement for Purposes of The “Safe Harbor” Provisionof the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995

This annual result announcement may contain, in addition to historical iafaom “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of the “safeboat provisions of the U.S. Private
Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These forward-lookingstants are based on SMIC’s current assumptions, expectations andipngj@bout future events. SMIC uses words like
“believe”, “anticipate”, “intend”, “estimate”, “expect”, “pro ject” and similar expressions to identify forward- looking sta¢ats, although not all forward-looking statements contain
these words. These forward-looking statements are necesssithates reflecting the best judgment of SMIC's senior managameiivolve significant risks, both known and unknown,
uncertainties and other factors that may cause SMIC's actual performiamaecial condition or results of operations to be materially diffefesrh those suggested by the forward-looking
statements including, among others, risks associated with cygfiealit market conditions in the semiconductor industry, intenspatiion, timely wafer acceptance by SMIC’s customers,
timely introduction of new technologies, SMIC's ability to ramp nemlyets into volume, supply and demand for semiconductor foundry seimthestry overcapacity, shortages in

equipment, components and raw materials, availability of manufactogpgcity and financial stability in end markets.

Except as required by law, SMIC undertakes no obligation and does nud iotepdate any forward-looking statement, whetherresat of new information, future events or otherwise.
BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2012, the Company continued to solidify its long-termegywand vision. The Company experienced profitable revgrawth while advancing its technology on the leading adde
developing value added differentiated legacy processe<dinpany’s portfolio, coupled with the global experience efiw management team in Operations, Technology Develtp
Customer Service and our China market share, positiootinpany for continued growth. In addition, 2012 was a milesteaefor SMIC’s advanced 65nm technology. The revenue
contribution from 65nm technology more than doubled, reprieged3®.0% of total wafer revenue in 2012 compared to 18.5% in ZB&1Company has also started volume shipment for 40nm
and 45nm in the fourth quarter of 2012.

Our Improved quality of service contributed to overall uttlmaof 88.3% in 2012 versus 68.9% in 2011. This led to compoundedhgimveach quarter throughout 2012.

Financial Overview

Despite a challenging environment in 2012, the Compaajésgotaled US$1,701.6 million, compared to US$1,319.5 million ih.Z0dring the year, we generated US$435.2 million in cash
from operating activities. Capital expenditures in 2012edt499.3 million. Looking ahead, our objective is to achiestamed profitability over the long term. To achieve this,will

continue to focus on precision execution, efficiency owpment, customer service excellence and fosterinyation.

Customers and Markets



SMIC continues to serve a broad global customer base compfikstling IDMs, fabless semiconductor companies andrsysigpanies.
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Geographically, customers from United States of Americdributed 55.3% of the overall revenue in 2012, compared to 55.0%In&t@l remained the largest revenue base for SMIC in 2012,
contributing a 67.1% to our advanced nodes wafer revenue dgingon our strategic position in China, our China rexdmas grown 34.1% year-on-year in 2012, contributed 33.9% of the
overall revenue in 2012 as compared to 32.7% in 2011.

In terms of applications, revenue contribution from comnaiivos applications increased, from 41.9% in 2011 to 45.8% in 2BiRis a result of our continued product focus imtbéile
space. Consumer applications contributed 43.6% to our overalluegveainly attributable to the strength of digital ¥&$eons (DTV), set-top boxes (STB) and gaming consolesC3hbk
minimal exposure to the relatively weak PC market.

Reviewing the revenue by technology: wafer revenuéatible to advanced technology at 90nm and below has grow@&dib in 2011 to 41.7% in 2012. In 2012, advanced 45nm technology
had started volume shipment and contributed 2.6% of tfer wevenue in the fourth quarter of 2012.

In 2012, we engaged 46 new customers. The majority were&hfabless companies, where we recorded sustained rguantie According to IHS iSuppli, China’s fabless nesnkill
experience a compound revenue growth rate of over 15% gemnylaich will bring the China semiconductor market/&$11.2 billion by 2015. Notably, our objective for business trom
China is not just to grow in revenue, but also to grieewnumber of new designs using advanced technology. Theabgras, in each of our regions, customers utilizingrst advanced nodes
of technology. China is rapidly closing the gap withithst of the world in terms of its innovation and desgpabilities. To fully leverage the market growth pagnh China, we will continue
to deepen our collaboration with Chinese customers whilademing our relationships with our other global customers.

Long-Term Business Model and Strategy for Generating and Presving Value

SMIC’s long-term goal is to focus on generating vabrettie benefit of all stakeholders. SMIC's strategy ttegate sustainable profitability is three-fold. Firse aim for optimal efficiency by
fully utilizing existing assets through enhancedauer relationships, quality, and service. Second, tadrgntage of our position in China, we plan to diffeed@tour technology offering by
providing customers with added value and innovation that ngtadiclw us to seize China market opportunities, but giée global customers footing in the fast-growing markhird, with
profitability as our priority, we plan to carefully investgital in advanced technology and capacity to address suitasket growth opportunities into the future. We cotistamaluate the
potential value addition of all opportunities in our decisiokingaprocesses. Our management team is committed toe@ti build value in the long-term for the benefit of @mployees,
administrating governments, customers, and shareholders.

Research and Development
In 2012, the research and development (R&D) expenses bédhmology Research & Development business unit %&98.6 million, which is equivalent to 11.4% of our sales.

The R&D efforts were focused primarily on advanced logit system-on-chip (SOC) process technologies. SMIC aahisaay significant milestones in 2012. In the area wéacked logic
process technologies, 40nm low-leakage (LL) process tlgynavas fully qualified through multiple Multi Projectaférs (MPWs) and New Tape Outs (NTOs) and was reldasgdlume
manufacturing at end of Q3'12. Both the High-K-Metal-G#&EMG) and PolySiON R&D programs on the 28nm node have pssgreon schedule and are target to reach process freeze in
Q4'13. Path finding for our 20nm process technology was coeapletQ1’12 and the 20nm R&D program was formally estaldigm€2’'12. In the area of memory process technolodies, t
development of 0.13um e-EEPROM process technology for bamk/sacial security cards or high-end smart cards hassbeeessfully completed. SMIC also developed more advaragd f
side-illumination (FSI) technology for supporting 1.75um pim&ge sensor products and successfully demonstratezkasioke- illumination (BSI) technology for 5+megapixel gasensor
products. In the area of power management ICs




(PMIC), the technology platform migration from 0.18um to Ot Bias been essentially completed to support broadened cuptaaiact applications in 2013. During 2012, SMIC achieved over
1,000 patent filings as a result of its technology R&Dvitadis.

The building and strengthening of SMIC’s technology R&ganization continued in 2012. The number of reseatikd@velopment engineers increased from approximately 466 ahd of
2011 to more than 600 at the end of 2012. Most members othlm®legy R&D team have experience in the semiconduatiusiry and have earned advanced degrees from leading itiggens
China and around the world (about 60% with an MS degreetand 85% with a PhD degree in engineering or scienocedd@iress planned R&D activities in 2013-14, the Technology
Research & Development Division carried out further omggion building and restructuring in 2012 for improved operatiefiiciency and plans to increase manpower by an additil0% in
2013.

Outlook for 2013

Our overall outlook for 2013 is cautiously optimistic. We hesgeled guidance estimating a 1% increase to 2% dedressenue in the first quarter of 2013 compared to fourthteu2012,
which is more than 40% year over year growth compardethirst quarter of 2012. We are on track in implemerdingnew initiatives and strategies within SMIC and@neud to see some
positive results, including even closer customer partnesshind healthy fab utilization rates. We believe our draliter in 2013 will be the continued ramp up of our 45nm for dtenasd
international customers.

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL GNDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATION

Consolidated Financial Data

The summary consolidated financial data presented beloWeas! or the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2012 areddieoive and should be read in conjunction with, the audited

consolidated financial statements, including the rdlatges, included elsewhere in this Annual result aweeuent. The summary consolidated financial data pexseeiow as of and for the
years ended December 31, 2011 and 2012 have been prepared in aeceithalrRS.




Continuing operations

Revenue

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Research and development

Sales and marketing expenses

General and administration expenses

Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment
Finance costs

Interest income

Other income

Other gains or losses

Share of profits of associates

Profit (loss) before tax

Income tax benefit (expense)

Profit (loss) for the year from continuing operations
Discontinued operations

Profit for the year from discontinued operations
Profit (loss) for the year

Other comprehensive income

Exchange differences on translating foreign operations
Total comprehensive income (expense) for the year
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to:

Owners of the Company Non-

controlling interests

Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to:

Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Earnings per share

From continuing and discontinued operations
Basic

Diluted

From continuing operations

Basic

Diluted

Year Ended
31/12/12

Year Ended
31/12/11

(in US$ thousands, except for eamings per share)

1,701,598 1,319,466
(1,352,835) (1,217,525)
348,763 101,941
(193,569) (191,473)
(31,485) (32,559)
(107,313) (57,435)
— (17,691)
(39,460) (21,903)
5,390 4,724
6,190 13,718
23,220 17,081
1,703 4,479
13,439 (179,118)
9,102 (82,503
22,541 (261,621)
— 14,741
22,541 (246,880
70 4,938
22,611 (241,943
22,771 (246,817)
(230 (63
22,541 (246,880
22,841 (241,879)
(230 (63
22,611 (241,943
0.00 (0.01)
0.00 (0.09)
0.00 (0.01)
0.00 (0.09







Statements of Financial Position Data:

Cash and bank balances
Restricted cash

Prepaid operating expenses
Trade and other receivables
Inventories

Other financial assets

Assets classified as held-for-sale
Total current assets

Prepaid land use rights
Property, plant and equipment
Total assets

Total current liabilities

Total non-current liabilities
Total liabilities

Noncontrolling interest

Total equity

As of December 31,

2012 2011
(in US$ thousands)

358,490 $ 261,615
217,603 136,907
46,986 52,805
328,211 200,905
295,728 207,308
18,730 1,973
4,239 —
1,269,987 861,513
73,692 77,231
2,385,435 2,516,578
4,073,160 3,727,929
1,108,086 1,251,324
688,622 230,607
1,796,708 1,481,931
952 1,182
2,276,452 % 2,245,998




For the year ended December
31,
2012 2011
(in US$ thousands, except
percentages and operating data)

Cash Flow Data:

Profit (loss) for the year $ 22541 % (246,880)
Non-cash adjustment to reconcile profit (loss) to netaipey cash flow:

Depreciation and amortization 566,899 551,857
Net cash from operating activities 435,166 379,368
Payments for property, plant and equipment (400,291) (931,574)
Net cash used in investing activities (522,277) (903,641)
Net cash from financing activities 184,101 268,855
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 96,990 (255,418)
Other Financial Data:

Gross margin 20.5% 7.7%
Net margin 1.3% -18.7%

Operating Data:
Wafers shipped (in units):
Total® 2,217,287 1,703,615

@ Including logic, DRAM, copper interconnects and alleotivafers.




Year Ended December 31, 2012 Compared to Year Ended DecemBéd 31,
Sales

Sales increased by 29.0% from US$1,319.5 million for 2011 to US$6é,#0lion for 2012, primarily due to an increase in ovewafer shipments. For the full year of 2012, the ovesalier
shipments were 2,217,287 units of 8-inch equivalent wafpr8012% year-on-year.

The average selling prite of the wafers the Companypstipgecreased from US$775 per wafer to US$767, The percentagiepfevenues from advanced technologies, 90nm and below,
increased from 28.4% to 41.7% between these two periods.

Cost of sales and gross profit (loss)

Cost of sales increase by 11.1% from US$1,217.5 million for 20U85$1,352.8 million for 2012. Out of the total cost of sale@@dr2, US$403.0 million was attributable to depreciation of
plant and equipment and another $1.8 million was attributatdbare-based compensation costs. Out of the totabfcsesies for 2011, US$415.6 million was attributable to deatieci of plant
and equipment and another $1.8 million was attributablbaiesbased compensation costs.

The Company’s gross profit was US$348.8 million for 2012 compare$$101.9 million in 2011. Gross margins were 20.5% in 2012 compaveti% in 2011. The increase in gross margins
was primarily due to an increase in revenues whichtegsin utilization improvement.

Income (expenses) and gain (loss) from continuing operations

Expenses from continuing operations increased by 19.3% fro281St$million for 2011 to US$335.3 miillion for 2012 primarily due torenease in general and administration expenses in
2012.

Research and development expenses increased by 1% from US$illédnFon 2011 to US$193.6 million for 2012 due to an increasesearch and development activities and a decrease in
government research and development grants.

General and administration expenses increased by 86.8% 88&Y4 million for 2011 to US$107.3 million for 2012, primarily duariancrease in employee bonus, city maintenance &
construction tax expenses and extra charges for edadat2012. In addition, recovery from previously writtefreteivables in 2011 significantly reduced the admiaiigtn expenses in 2011
but had less impact in 2012.

Sales and marketing expenses decreased by 3.4% from US$Bi216fori 2011 to US$31.5 million for 2012.

As a result, the Company’s profit (loss) from continpgrations was US$22.5 million and (US$261.6) million in 2012 antl 2&bectively.

1 Based on simplified average selling price which is dated as total revenue divided by total shipments.
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Discontinued Operations

On March 1, 2011, the Company sold its majority ownershgsést in Semiconductor Manufacturing Internationdl)(Borporation (“AT”) and deconsolidated the entity. As sute all
previously issued preferred securities by AT were cagdellhe Company retained a 10% interest in AT and wilbaat for such investment under the cost method in fpierieds as it no
longer has a controlling financial interest nor sigaift influence over AT. The Company reported the tesflAT as a discontinued operation in the condensed lideisnl statements of
comprehensive income. No cash or other consideration weseel by the Company in conjunction with the disposition.

The Company recorded a gain of $17.1 million on the deconsiohidzf AT equal to the difference between (i) thenai (a) the fair value of the retained noncontrolimgrest in AT, and (b) the
carrying amount of the aforementioned noncontrolling istareAT, and (ii) the carrying amount of AT’s assaitl liabilities. Income from discontinued operations of $hdllfon represents

both the results of operations of AT for the period from JgrLig2011 to the date it was deconsolidated and the gain onsidiclation of AT.

Profit (loss) for the year

Due to the factors described above, the Company recordeéitaoptis$22.5 million in 2012 compared to a loss of US$246.9 milinc2011.

Funding sources for material capital expenditure ircdming year

For 2013, the Company plans to spend about $600 million in cagfiehditure for foundry operations. The planned capital exjpeads mainly to ramp-up our 45/40nm and 28/32nm capacity
in Shanghai and Beijing to match our customers’ denEmel primary sources of capital resources and liquiditydecfunds generated from operations, bank borrowingsrisswof debt and
equity financing.

Bad debt provision

The Company determines its bad debt provision based on thea@gmhistorical experience and the relative agingoéivables as well as individual assessment of cel¢ditors. The
Company’s bad debt provision excludes receivables from a limit@ber of customers due to their high credit worthinelss.dompany provides bad debt provision based on the age category
of the remaining receivables. A fixed percentage ofdtsd amount receivable is applied to receivables in eathipasge category, ranging from 1% for the shortesido@sage category to
100% for the longest past due age category. Any receivaiieb have been fully provided for and are subsequentlyel@on-collectible will be written off against the reletvvamount of
provision. The Company's recognized bad debt provision in 2012,82@12010 amounted to US$4.6 million, US$0.6 million and US$1.1 millespectively. The Company reviews, analyzes
and adjusts bad debt provisions on a monthly basis.

Debt Arrangements

Set forth in the table below are the aggregate amasitsf December 31, 2012, of the Company’s future cash pagbiagations under the Company’s existing contractuargements on a
consolidated basis:

Payments due by period Less than

Contractual obligations Total 1year 1-2 years 2-5 years
(consolidated, in US$ thousands)

Short-term borrowings $ 383,225 % 383,225 % —  $ —

Secured long-term loans 713,190 184,578 309,000 219,612

Purchase obligatiofis 507,190 507,190 — —

Other long-term obligatiof® 29,374 29,374 — —

Total contractual obligations $ 1,632,979 $ 1,104,367 $ 309,000 $ 219,612




Represents commitments for constructigguochase of semiconductor equipment, and other propesgraices.
Represents the settlement with TSMC foaggregate of $200 million payable in installments overyesgs.
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As of December 31, 2012, the Company’s outstanding longhlitities primarily consisted of US$713.2 million in seed bank loans, which are repayable in installmentsrgian
June 2013, with the last payment in March 2016.

2011 EXIM Bank USD Loan (SMIC Shanghai)

In April 2011, Semiconductor Manufacturing Internatiorgthgnghai) Corporation (“SMIS”) entered into the ShangldM Bank USD loan |, a two-year loan facility iretiprincipal amount of
US$69.5 million with The Export-Import Bank of China. Thiootyear bank facility was used to finance the plannedmsipn for SMIS’s 12-inch fab. As of December 31, 2012, SMtSdiawn
down US$69.5 million and repaid US$1 million, on this loanlifgciThe principal amount of $68.5 million will be repayafh June 2013. The interest rate ranges from 4.40% to 4.798g dur
2012. The interest expense incurred in 2012 was US$3.4 mofievhich US$1.1 million was capitalized additions $sets under construction in 2012.

The total outstanding balance of the facilities is st by certain equipment of SMIS with an original co2$$99.6 million as of December 31, 2012.

The Shanghai EXIM Bank USD loan | contains covenantsaintain certain minimum coverage ratio. SMIS wasoimpliance with these covenants as of December 31, 2012.

2012 EXIM Bank USD Loan (SMIC Shanghai)

In October 2012, SMIS entered into the Shanghai EXIM B8R ldan Il, a new two-year loan facility in the piipal amount of US$70 million with The Export-lmport BankGifina, which is
secured by certain equipment of SMIS. This two-yeak Esaility was used to finance the planned expansion¥iES 12-inch fab. As of December 31, 2012, SMIS had drawmdd&4$70
million. The principal amount of $70 million will be repayatih October 2014. The interest rate is 4.55%. The intexpshse incurred in 2012 was US$0.4 million, of which US§tllion
was capitalized additions to assets under constructidfli2.

The Shanghai EXIM USD loan Il contains covenants tontaai certain minimum coverage ratio. SMIS was in céangke with these covenants as of December 31, 2012.

2012 USD Loan (SMIC Shanghai)

In March 2012, SMIS entered into a loan facility indggregate principal amount of US$268 million from a conguortifinternational and Chinese banks. This threeyask facility is used to
finance the working capital for SMIS’s 8-inch fab. Taeility is secured by the manufacturing equipment ketén the SMIS 8-inch fabs, plants and land use rigB\is. As of December 31,
2012, SMIS had drawn down US$245.6 million, on this loanifgcilhe principal amount is repayable from September 20Mateh 2015. The interest rate on this loan facility eainfjom
4.03% to 4.24% in 2012. The interest expense incurred in 201P8&&9 million, of which US$2.4 million was capitalized addgitmassets under construction in 2012.

Any of the following in respect of SMIS would constituteevent of default during the term of the loan agreémen

1. (Short-term Loans + Long-term Debt Current Portion +gttmrm Bank Loans)/Total Equity is more than 60%; or

2. (Net profit + Depreciation + Amortization + Income Tax¥sion + Financial Expenses)/Financial Expensessis tlegan 500% before December 31, 2012, and less than 1000% after
January 1, 2013; or
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3. (Total Equity - Acquired Intangible Assets Net) is [#gmn US$800 million before December 31, 2012, and less thanQ@8%tillion after January 1, 2013; or

4. Debt Service Coverage Ratio is less than 2.0X during tivedkthe loan repayment. Debt Service Coverage Ratiostediling four quarters EBITDA (Net Profit + Depration +
Amortization + Income Tax Provision + Financial Expensidgded by scheduled repayment of long term loan and relateokfied expense for all bank borrowings (including hire
purchases, leases and other borrowed monies, but not ngchaddiurm/short term revolving bank loans) for the samiegher

SMIS was in compliance with these covenants as of Deee8l, 2012.
2005 USD Loan (SMIC Beijing)

In May 2005, Semiconductor Manufacturing InternationaijiBg) Corporation (“SMIB”) entered into the Beijing USndicate loan, a five-year loan facility in the a&ggtte principal amount of
US$600 million, with a syndicate of financial institutidmssed in the PRC. The principal amount was repayabtagtiom December 2007 in six equal semi-annual instatsn®©n June 26,
2009, SMIB amended the syndicated loan agreement to Hefeotnmencement of the three remaining semi-annualguéy to December 28, 2011. The amendment includes a prdaision
mandatory early repayment of a portion of the outstandingb&iid SMIB’s financial performance exceeds certagrgetermined benchmarks. The amendment was accountedddor a
modification as the terms of the amended instrument natreubstantially different from the original terms. IBVhade the repayment of remaining outstanding borrow8§180.1 million in
2012. The interest rate ranged from 2.94% to 2.99%. The shexpense incurred in 2012 was US$4.1million, of which Wbillion was capitalized additions to assets under cotisnua
2012.

2011 EXIM USD & RMB Loan (SMIC Beijing)

In September 2011, SMIB entered into the USD & RMB Leatwyo-year working capital loan facility in the prindipanount of US$25 million & RMB150 million (approximately $24 liaih)
with The Export-Import Bank of China. This two-year baatility was used for working capital purpose. As of Deoen31, 2012, SMIB had drawn down US$25 million & RMB 150 million
on this loan facility. The principal amount is repayabl&eptember 2013. The interest rate on this loan facditged from 6.15% to 6.65% in 2012. The interest expengerédcin 2012 was
US$3.2 million, of which US$0.7 million was capitalized adui§ to assets under construction in 2012.

The total outstanding balance of this USD and RMB Loaetsired by SMIB’s plant and equipment with an origheet of US$132.3 million as of December 31, 2012.
2012 EXIM USD Loan (SMIC Beijing)

In March 2012, SMIB entered into the new USD Loan, a twar-yeorking capital loan facility in the principal amooftJS$30 million with The Export-Import Bank of China, whish
unsecured. This two-year bank facility was used for wgrkapital purposes. As of December 31, 2012, SMIB had drawm d8%20 million on this loan facility. The principal amoimt
repayable in March 2014. The interest rate on this |laalitfaranged from 6.46% to 6.54% in 2012. The interest expéncurred in 2012 was US$1 million, of which US$0.2 mili@s
capitalized additions to assets under construction in 2012.

2012 USD Loan (SMIC Beijing)

In March 2012, SMIB entered into the Beijing USD syndidasa, a seven-year loan facility in the aggregatecprath amount of $600 million, with a syndicate of finanémaititutions based in
the PRC. This seven-year bank facility was used to edtencapacity of SMIB’s 12 inch fabs. The facility é&sred by the manufacturing equipment located in thé8&ivil Semiconductor
Manufacturing International (Tianjin) Corporation (“SM)Tabs, and 100% equity pledge of SMIB and SMIT. As of&wsleer 31, 2012, SMIB had drawn down US$260 million on this loan
facility which is repayable from March 2014 to March 2016. ifterest rate on this loan facility ranged from 6.16%.24% in 2012. The interest expense incurred in 2012 was 2S$12.
million, of which US$2.3 million was capitalized additidnsassets under construction in 2012.
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Any of the following in respect of SMIB would constitute @/ent of default during the term of the loan agreement

1. Total Liabilities/Total Assets is more than 65% (Totalhilities exclude Shareholder’s loans); or

2. (Net Profit + Depreciation + Amortization + Interesipgrses + Cash flow from Financing)/(Principal + InteEegenses) is less than 100%.
SMIB was in compliance with these covenants as of Deaedihe2012.

2005 EUR Loan

On December 15, 2005, the Company entered into a EUR dextechinng-term loan facility agreement in the aggeegeincipal amount of EUR 85 million (equivalent to approxetya$105
million) with ABN Amro Bank N.V. Shanghai Branch. Theawdown period of the facility ended on the earlier ofh{ity six months after the execution of the agredroelii) the date on which
the loans had been fully drawn down. Each draw down medks the facility was repaid in full by us in ten egseini-annual installments. In May and June 2012, Skp&id the remaining
balance of EUR 6.4 million. The interest rate rangethf2.6% to 4.7% in 2012. The interest expense incurred in@832JS$0.23 million of which US$0.09 million was capitalized tilts
to assets under construction in 2012.

As of December 31, 2012, the Company had 29 short-term cgeeéraents that provided total credit facilities of up to $tloilon a revolving credit basis. As of December 31, 2012, the
Company had drawn down $383.2 million under these credit agneseare $629.3 million was available for future trading) lorrowing. The outstanding borrowings under the credit
agreements are unsecured, except for US$129 millionhvighigecured by time deposits of US$108.4 million, and aniadaithalance of US$5.9 million, which is secured by peaperty with
an original cost of US$2.1 million. The interest expensearred in 2012 was US$22.2 million of which US$8.6 milliorswapitalized as additions to assets under constructiomt€hest rate
ranged from 1.01% to 7.2% in 2012.

Capitalized Interest

Interest incurred on funds used to construct plant angbegui during the active construction period is capitalinetiof government subsidies received. The interestadiapd is determined by
applying the borrowing interest rate to the average anodamtcumulated capital expenditures for the assets aoastruction during the period. Capitalized intereatided to the cost of the
underlying assets and is amortized over the usefublifiee assets. Capitalized interest of US$16.5 million é8f18.2 million in 2012 and 2011, respectively, net of governsudasidies, has
been added to the cost of the underlying assets duriggdhend is amortized over the respective useful lifeecddisets. In 2012, 2011 and 2010, the Company recorded amoréxptoses
relating to the capitalized interest of US$9.9 million @3$million and US$6.9 million, respectively.

Commitments

As of December 31, 2012, the Company had commitments of US$RE0B ifor facilities construction obligations in Beiig, Tianjin and Shanghai. The Company had commitmetiS$481.6
million to purchase machinery and equipment for Beijifignjin, Shanghai and SilTech Semiconductor Shangbgpdation (“SilTech”) fabs.

Debt to Equity Ratio
As of December 31, 2012, the Company’s net debt to equitywat approximately 32.42%. Please refer to Note 35 tomamdial statements for calculation.
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Foreign Exchange Rate Fluctuation Risk

The Company’s revenue, expense, and capital expendittggsimarily transacted in U.S. dollars. The Compaswy ahters into transactions in other currencies. Thep@oy is primarily
exposed to changes in exchange rates for the Euro.e3spden, and RMB.

To minimize these risks, the Company purchases forigrency forward exchange contracts with contract tewmsally lasting less than twelve months to protecirasgthe adverse effect that
exchange rate fluctuations may have on foreign-currdengminated activities. These forward exchange contreetgrincipally denominated in RMB, Japanese Yen or Eamdsio not qualify
for hedge accounting in accordance with IFRS.

Cross Currency Swap Fluctuation Risk

On December 15, 2005, the Company entered into a londgamfacility agreement in the aggregate principaluinof EUR 85 million. The Company was primarily exposechmges in the
exchange rate for the Euro.

To minimize the currency risk, the Company enterea ¢nbss currency swap contracts with a contract tdtymhatching the repayment schedule of part of thisoHong-term loan to protect
against the adverse effect of exchange rate fluongtrising from foreign-currency denominated loane.crbss currency swap contracts did not qualify for hadgeunting in accordance with
IFRS.

For the portion of the Euro long-term loan that was not @al/by cross currency swap contracts, we had sepaeateled into foreign exchange forward contracts to mieirthie currency risk.
These foreign exchange forward contracts did not qualifiiddge accounting in accordance with IFRS.

Outstanding Foreign Exchange Contracts

As of December 31, 2012, the Company had outstanding fonaigimcy forward exchange contracts with notional amafritss$82.8 million. As of December 31, 2012, the fair valuaign
currency forward exchange contracts was approxima®$ow5 million, which is recorded in other current as3éis.foreign currency exchange contracts will maduméng 2013.

The Company had US$165.6 million of foreign currency excheogeacts outstanding as of December 31, 2011, all of whéttred in 2012,
The Company had US$92.9 million of foreign currency exahaogtracts outstanding as of December 31, 2010, all of whitthed in 2011.

The Company does not enter into foreign currency exehemgiracts for speculative purposes.

As of
December 31, 2012

As of
December 31, 2011

As of
December 31, 2010

(in US$ thousands)

(in US$ thousands)

(in US$ thousands)

2012 Fair Value 2011 Fair Value 2010 Fair Value
Forward Exchange Agreement
(Receive Eur/Pay US$)
Contract Amount — — 4,653 (88) 10,175 (90)
(Receive RMB/Pay US$)
Contract Amount 82,810 52 160,993 211 82,685 305
Total Contract Amount 82,810 52 165,646 123 92,860 215
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Outstanding Cross Currency Swap Contracts

As of December 31, 2012, the Company had no outstanding eroesay swap contracts. Notional amounts of US$3.7 milligstanding as of December 31, 2011 were settled in May 2012. A
realized foreign exchange loss of US$0.5 million was dexbfor 2012.

Interest Rate Risk

The Company’s exposure to interest rate risks relatemply to the Company’s long-term debt obligations, ethihe Company generally assumes to fund capital expesgigad working

capital requirements. The table below presents annumijpal amounts due and related weighted average implie@ifdrinterest rates by year of maturity for the Compathgtst obligations
outstanding as of December 31, 2012. The Company’s longdtshobligations are all subject to variable interessratke interest rates on the Company’s U.S. dollar-dieated loans are
linked to the LIBOR. The interest rates on the CompaRiB denominated loans are linked to People’s Bank aiaC{itBOC) RMB Interest Rate. As a result, the @strates on the Company’s
loans are subject to fluctuations in the underlyitgriest rates to which they are linked.

As of December 31

2013 2014
(Forecast)

(in US$ thousands, except percentages)
US$ denominated
Average balance 618,595 397,976
Average interest rate 517% 5.35%
RMB denominated
Average balance 18,669 —
Average interest rate 6.65% —
Weighted average forward interest rate 5.21% 5.35%
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHEFOMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Continuing operations
Revenue
Cost of sales
Gross profit
Research and development
Sales and marketing expenses
General and administration expenses
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment
Finance costs
Interest income
Other income
Other gains or losses
Share of profits of associates
Profit (loss) before tax
Income tax benefit (expense)
Profit (loss) for the year from continuing operations
Discontinued operations
Profit for the year from discontinued operations
Profit (loss) for the year
Other comprehensive income
Item that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Exchange differences on translating foreign operations
Total comprehensive income (expense) for the year
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interest

Total comprehensive income (expense) for the year a#hilauto:

Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Earnings (loss) per share

From continuing and discontinued operations
Basic
Diluted

(In USD’000, except share and per share data)

For the year ended December 31

Notes 2012 2011

6 1,701,598 1,319,466
(1,352,835 (1,217,525

348,763 101,941
(193,569) (191,473)

(31,485) (32,559)

(107,313) (57,435)

— (17,691)

9 (39,460) (21,903)
5,390 4,724

6,190 13,718

8 23,220 17,081
1,703 4,479
13,439 (179,118)

10 9,102 (82,503
11 22,541 (261,621)
12 — 14,741
22,541 (246,880

70 4,938

22,611 (241,943
22,771 (246,817)

(230 (63

22,541 (246,880
22,841 (241,879)

(230 (63

22,611 (241,943

15 0.00 (0.01)
15 0.00 (0.09)




From continuing operations
Basic 15 $ 0.00 $ (0.01)
Diluted 15 $ 0.00 $ (0.09
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Assets

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Prepaid Land use right
Intangible assets
Investments in associates
Deferred tax assets

Other assets

Total non-current assets
Current assets

Inventories

Prepaid operating expenses
Trade and other receivables
Other financial assets
Restricted cash

Cash and bank balances

Assets classified as held-for-sale
Total current assets

Total assets

Equity and liabilities

Capital and reserves

(In USD’000, except share and per share data)

Notes

12/31/12

12/31/11

1/1/11

17

18
20
10
22

23
24

21
25

16

Ordinary shares $0.0004 par value, 50,000,000,000 shares auth®2if¥i), 139,623,
27,487,676,065, and 27,334,063,747 shares issued and outstandiograb&e31,

2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively

26

Convertible preferred shares, $0.0004 par value, 5,000,000,000 atneszed, nil,
445,545,911 shares and nil issued and outstanding at Decémi2€12, 2011 and

2010, respectively
Share premium
Reserves
Accumulated deficit
Equity attributable to owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests
Total equity
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings
Deferred tax liabilities

26
26
27
28

29
10

2,385,435 2,516,578 2,351,863
73,962 77,231 78,798
235,378 179,279 173,821
21,636 15,856 7,665
43,380 31,787 112,688
43,382 45,685 2,393
2,803,173 2,866,416 2,727,228
295,728 207,308 213,404
46,986 52,805 17,705
328,211 200,905 264,048
18,730 1,973 3,149
217,603 136,907 161,350
358,490 261,615 515,808
1,265,748 861,513 1,175,464
4,239 — _
1,269,987 861,513 1,175,464
4,073,160 3,727,929 3,902,692
12,800 10,995 10,934
— 178 —
4,083,588 4,082,135 3,762,146
46,148 41,315 39,447
(1,867,036 (1,889,807 (1,642,990
2,275,500 2,244,816 2,169,537
952 1,182 1,245
2,276,452 2,245,998 2,170,782
528,612 72,361 178,596
440 1,333 1,094



Deferred government grant
Promissory notes

Long-term financial liabilities
Other liabilities

Total non-current liabilities

150,347 125,335 49,143

31 — 28,560 56,327
4,223 3,018 37,759

5,000 — 9,646

688,622 230,607 332,565
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Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Borrowings

Accrued liabilities
Promissory notes

Other financial liabilities
Current tax liabilities

Total current liabilities
Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities
Net current assets (liabilities)

Total assets less current liabilities

Notes

12/31/12

12/31/11

1/1/11

17

30
29

31
32
10

423,952 375,748 614,055
567,803 798,782 705,514
84,611 45,674 45,357
29,374 29,374 29,374
25 1,683 3,152

2,321 63 1,893
1,108,086 1,251,324 1,399,345
1,796,708 1,481,931 1,731,910
4,073,160 3,727,929 3,902,692
161,901 (389,81) (223,88)
2,965,074 2,476,605 2,503,347




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Balance at January 1, 2011

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year
Total comprehensive income for the year
Exercise of stock options

Issuance of convertible preferred shares and wesrran
Share-based compensation

Balance at December 31, 2011

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year
Total comprehensive income for the year
Exercise of stock options

Exercise convertible preferred shares
Share-based compensation

Balance at December 31, 2012

(In USD’000)
Equity-settled Foreign
Convertible employee currency Attributable Non-
Ordinary preferred Share benefits translation Accumulated to owners of controlling Total
Shares shares premium reserve reserve deficit the Company interest Equity
(Note 26) (Note 26) (Note 27) (Note 27) (Note 28)

10,934 — 3,762,146 40,539 (1,092) (1,642,990) 2,169,537 1,245 2,170,782
— — — — — (246,817) (246,817) (63) (246,880)

— — — — 4,938 — 4,938 — 4,938

— — — — 4,938 (246,817 (241,879 (63) (241,942

61 — 11,870 (8,406) — — 3,525 — 3,525

— 178 308,119 — — — 308,297 — 308,297

— — — 5,336 — — 5,336 — 5,336

10,995 178 4,082,135 37,469 3,846 (1,889,807 2,244,816 1,182 2,245,998

— — — — — 22,771 22,771 (230) 22,541

— — — — 70 — 70 — 70

— — — — 70 22,771 22,841 (230 22,611

23 — 3,057 (2,411) — — 669 — 669

1,782 (178) (1,604) — — — — — —

— — — 7,174 — — 7,174 — 7,174

12,800 — 4,083,588 42,232 3,916 (1,867,038 2,275,500 952 2,276,452
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Operating activities:

Profit (loss) for the year
Adjustments for:
Income tax (benefit) expenses
Forgiveness of payables
Gain on disposition of discontinued operation, net of taxes
Amortization of intangible assets and land use right
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Impairment loss of property, plant and equipment
Expense recognized in respect of equity-settled sharelpayenents
Finance cost
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Interest income recognized in profit or loss
Bad debt allowance on trade receivables
Impairment loss recognized on Inventory
Net loss (gain) arising on financial assets at falue through profit or loss
Net gain arising on financial liabilities at fair wel through profit or loss
Reversal of bad debt allowance on trade receivables
Share of profit of associates
Other non-cash expense

Operating cash flows before movements in working capital:
(Increase) decrease in trade and other receivables
Increase in inventories
Increase in restricted cash relating to operating dgietvi
Decrease (increase) in prepaid operating expenses
Increase in other assets
Increase in trade and other payables
Increase in deferred government grant
Increase in accrued liabilities
Decrease in other liabilities

Cash generated from operations

Interest paid

Interest received

Income taxes paid

Net cash from operating activities

(In USD’000)

For the year ended

December 31
2012 2011
22,541 (246,880)
(9,102) 82,503
— (19,011)
— (17,103)
35,076 33,017
531,823 518,840
— 17,691
7,174 5,336
39,460 21,903
(19,325) 508
(5,390) (4,724)
4,615 551
4,851 6,473
861 (244)
(1,659) (1,469)
(2,095) (6,400)
(1,703) (4,479)
635 556
607,762 387,068
(112,410) 73,069
(93,270) (5,587)
(15,406) (60,221)
7,791 (41,190)
(937) (9,897)
22,942 902
25,010 76,193
36,951 5,911
— (9,646
478,433 416,602
(47,532) (38,765)
5,390 4,724
(1,125 (3,193
435,166 379,368
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Investing activities

Payments to acquire financial assets

Proceeds on sale of financial assets

Payments for property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from government subsidy to purchase plant aiphesmnt
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment amgjiinke assets
Payments for intangible assets

Payments to acquire long-term investment

Amounts advanced to proposed joint ventures

Change in restricted cash relating to investing aitvit

Net cash outflow from disposition of discontinued operation
Net cash used in investing activities

Financing activities

Proceeds from issuance of convertible preferred shares
Proceeds from borrowings

Repayment of borrowings

Proceeds from exercise of employee stock options
Repayment of promissory notes

Net cash from financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the yea

Effects of exchange rate changes on the balancesbfhedd in foreign currencies

Cash and bank balance at the end of the year

20

For the year ended

December 31
2012 2011
(43,638) (40,350)
26,019 45,093
(400,291) (931,574)
— 1,967
37,288 4,421
(76,366) (31,185)
— (1,000)
— (31,816)
(65,289) 84,316
— (3,513
(522,277 (903,64)
— 308,297
1,541,480 1,326,351
(1,328,048) (1,339,318)
669 3,525
(30,000 (30,000
184,101 268,855
96,990 (255,418)
261,615 515,808
(115 1,225
358,490 261,615




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.

General information

Semiconductor Manufacturing International Corporation astablished as an exempt company incorporated undemtbeof the Cayman Islands on April 3, 2000. The address of th
principal place of business is 18 Zhangjiang Road, PudongMe&; Shanghai, China, 201203; The registered addresB@ Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104
Cayman Islands. Semiconductor Manufacturing IntesnatiCorporation is an investment holding company.

Semiconductor Manufacturing International Corporation gndubsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred tthas‘Company” or “SMIC”) are mainly engaged in the cotepaided
design, manufacturing, testing, packaging, and traafingegrated circuits and other semiconductor servaesyell as designing and manufacturing semiconducteksnd@he principal
subsidiaries and their activities are set out in Note 19.

Basis of preparation and application of new and reviserhaittenal Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)
Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Companylhese prepared in accordance with International FinaReipbrting Standards (“IFRS”) as issued by the InteynatiAccounting
Standards Board (“IASB”).

These are the Company’s first annual financial semtsrissued under IFRS. Prior to 2012, the Company preparezhiolidated financial statements in accordance witlkeiGHy
Accepted Accounting Principles in the United StatesraéAca (“US GAAP”). The Company has applied IFRS 1,8Fiime Adoption of International Financial Reportingr8ards” to
transition from US GAAP to IFRS.

The preparation of the consolidated financial statemestdted in different accounting policies adopted as comgartadse disclosed in the Company’s audited consolidated iithanc
statements for the year ended December 31, 2011, preparedU8n@&¥AP. A summary of the significant changes toQbenpany’s accounting policies, along with reconciliations
presenting the impact of the transition to IFRS asratalg 1, 2011 and as at December 31, 2011 and for the yksat Becember 31, 2011, are disclosed in Note 4. A summdry of t
Company’s significant accounting policies under IFRfressented in Note 3. These policies have been retrosggetnd consistently applied.
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Basis of preparation and application of new and revisechaittenal Financial Reporting Standards (IFR@shtinued)
Basis of preparation(continued)

In addition, the Company has applied the amendments t@ P@sentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Incoraeviance of the effective date (annual periods beginning after
July 1, 2012). The amendments introduce new terminolodghdostatement of comprehensive income and income stdtésneer the amendments to IAS 1, the ‘statement of cimepsive
income’ is renamed the ‘statement of profit or loss angratbmprehensive income’ and the ‘income statemengriamed the ‘statement of profit or loss’. The amentiterlAS 1 retain
the option to present profit or loss and other comprehensieenin either a single statement or in two separateomgecutive statements. However, the amendments tb t&Quire
items of other comprehensive income to be grouped into tvegar@s in the other comprehensive income sectiontefag ithat will not be reclassified subsequently to pooflbss and
(b) items that may be reclassified subsequently to ofitss when specific conditions are met. Income tateoms of other comprehensive income is required to bea#idon the same
basis — the amendments do not change the option to presesioit other comprehensive income either before tax of teet. The amendments have been applied retrospectively.
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2. Basis of preparation and application of new and reviseth&itenal Financial Reporting Standards (IFR@shtinued)
New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Company has not applied the following new and revisB&$ that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to IFRSs Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle

Amendments to IFRS 1 Government Loands

Amendments to IFRS 7 Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets and Findngabilities?

Amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7 Mandatory Effective Date of IFRS 9 and Transition Disclesur

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS 12 Consolidated Financial Statements, Joint Arrangemedt®estlosure of Interests in Other Entities: Transition
Guidancé

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27 Investment Entiti€s

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Stateménts

IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entittes

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measuremént

IAS 19 (Revised 2011) Employee Benefifs

IAS 27 (Revised 2011) Separate Financial Stateménts

IAS 28 (Revised 2011) Investments in Associates and Joint \entures

Amendments to IAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilifies

IFRIC 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface!Mine

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after JanLiaPp13
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after JanLiaPp15
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after JanLaPp14
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Basis of preparation and application of new and revisechaittenal Financial Reporting Standards (IFR@shtinued)
New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet effectieontinued)
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 9, issued in November 2009, introduced new requireriogritse classification and measurement of financiaétss IFRS 9 was amended in October 2010 to include reguitefor
the classification and measurement of financial liib8iand for derecognition.

Key requirements of IFRS 9:

All recognized financial assets that are withingbepe of IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition andsareanent to be subsequently measured at amortized cagt valfie.
Specifically, debt investments that are held withbusiness model whose objective is to collect the contrazagal flows, and that have contractual cash flowsatieasolely
payments of principal and interest on the principal antihg are generally measured at amortized cost ahthef subsequent accounting periods. All other debt invetstraad
equity investments are measured at their fair valtieeatnd of subsequent accounting periods. In addition, URR& 9, entities make an irrevocable election to presbseguent
changes in the fair value of an equity investment (ghatt held for trading) in other comprehensive inconith @nly dividend income generally recognized in profitasd.

With regard to the measurement of financial liabiditieesignated as at fair value through profit or loRSIB requires that the amount of change in the faireval the financial
liabilities that is attributable to changes in the dreidk of that liability, is presented in other comprehemsncome, unless the recognition of the effects of gémim the liability's
credit risk in other comprehensive income would creatntarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Ghaingfair value attributable to a financial liabilitgsedit risk are
not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Under 1ASH&9entire amount of the change in the fair valubefinancial liability designated as fair value thropgbfit or loss
was presented in profit or loss.

IFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on @rafanuary 1, 2015, with earlier application permitted.
The Company anticipates that the application of IFRSt®eifuture may have a significant impact on amounented in respect of the Company’s financial assetstte gompany's
equity instruments that are currently classifiedesilable-for-sale investments measured at cost will ttalde measured at fair value at the end of subsequentinggmetiods).

However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estiofidhe effect of IFRS 9 until a detailed review hasnbeompleted.
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Basis of preparation and application of new and revisechaittenal Financial Reporting Standards (IFR@shtinued)
New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet effectieontinued)

New and revised Standards on consolidation, joint arrangementspeases and disclosures May 2011, a package of five Standards consolidation, oiahgements, associates and
disclosures issued, including IFRS 10, IFRS 11, IFRS 12 2A(as revised in 2011) and IAS 28 (as revised in 2011).

Key requirements of these five Standards are described below

IFRS 10 replaces the parts of IAS 27 Consolidated and Sepamateial Statements that deal with consolidated dimdustatements. SIC-12 Consolidation — Special Purposgesnti
will be withdrawn upon the effective date of IFRS 10. Un&&S 10, there is only one basis for consolidation, thabigtrol. In addition, IFRS 10 includes a new definitiooaftrol that
contains three elements: (a) power over an investeexposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involv@gmeth the investee, and (c) the ability to use awer over the investee to
affect the amount of the investor’s return. Extensivdamce has been added in IFRS 10 to deal with complex saenari

IFRS 12 is a disclosure standard and is applicable toesrtiitat have interests in subsidiaries, joint amaegts, associates and/or unconsolidated structuree®rititigeneral, the
disclosure requirements in IFRS 12 are more extensivdtbsa in the current standards.

In June 2012, the amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and IFR8r&2ssued to clarify certain transitional guidancéherapplication of these IFRSs for the first time.
These five standards together with the amendmentsdiagahe transition guidance are effective for anneaiqals beginning on or after January 1, 2013, with earntiplieation permitted
provided all of these standards are applied at the sameTteeCompany anticipates that the application of thesestandards will not have a significant impact on amaeqsrted in

the consolidated financial statements.
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Basis of preparation and application of new and revisechaittenal Financial Reporting Standards (IFR@shtinued)
New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet effectieontinued)
IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement
IFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance fovdhie measurements and disclosures about fair valumireeaents. The standard defines fair value, establizframework for
measuring fair value, and requires disclosures aboutghie measurements. The scope of IFRS 13 is broad; ieafplboth financial instrument items and non-fimalnostrument items
for which other IFRSs require or permit fair value measents and disclosures about fair value measuremectpt®n specified circumstances. In general, theaisot requirements
in IFRS 13 are more extensive than those required iruthert standards. For example, quantitative and quaétdisclosures based on the three-level fair value higrarecrently
required for financial instruments only under IFRS 7aRaial Instruments: Disclosures will be extended by IEBR® cover all assets and liabilities within its scope.
IFRS 13 is effective for annual periods beginning on tar d@fnuary 1, 2013, with earlier application permitted.

The Company anticipates that the application of the temdard may not have significant impact to the amoupterted in the financial statements, but may resuttore extensive
disclosure.

Amendments to IFRS7 and IAS32 Offsetting Financial Assetsldfinancial Liabilities and the related disclosures

The amendments to IAS 32 clarify existing applicatiaués relating to the offset at financial assets auashdial liabilities requirements. Specifically, tomendments clarify the meaning
of ‘currently has a legally enforceable right of sét-afid ‘simultaneous realization and settlement’.

The amendments to IFRS 7 require entities to discldeeniation about rights of offset and related arrangesrsnch as collateral posting requirements) for Gi@rnnstruments under an
enforceable master netting agreement or similar geraent.

The amendments to IFRS 7 are effective for annuabgereginning on or after January 1, 2013 and interim pewiihis those annual periods. The disclosures should be provided
retrospectively for all comparative periods. However, thendments to IAS 32 are not effective until annual pertmetsinning on or after January 1, 2014, with retrospective cgijgn
required.

The Company anticipates that the application of thesedmants to IAS32 and IFRS7 may result in more disclosuigag bede with regard to offsetting financial assetsfarancial
liabilities in the future.

Amendments to IAS 32

The amendments to IAS 32 clarify that income tax regatrdistributions to holders of an equity instrumet # transaction costs of an equity transaction shouitbeunted for in
accordance with IAS 12 Income Tax. The Company anticipiadtshe amendments to IAS 32 will have no effect oiCth@pany’s consolidated financial statements as the Cgrhyan
already adapted this treatment.
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3.

Significant accounting policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepagetiistorical cost basis, except for certain financisiruments that are measured at fair value as egglairthe accounting
policies set out below. The consolidated financial statesrare presented in US dollars and all values are rototlenearest thousand (US’000), except when othemdseated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate taadial statements of the Company and entities contrbileélde Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved wther€ompany
has the power to govern the financial and operating jesliof an entity so as to obtain benefits from its #iets:

Income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or disposed f theriyear are included in the consolidated statemept®fitf or loss and other comprehensive income from tieetafe
date of acquisition and up to the effective date of dispasappropriate. Total comprehensive income of subsidiarésitaited to the owners of the Company and to the nonettomdy
interests even if this results in the non-controllimgriests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the finatataments of the subsidiaries to bring their accauptiicies in line with those used by other memberseoCitbmpany.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expargeeliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presentedragely from the Company’s equity therein.

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Company hafisant influence and that is neither a subsidianyam interest in a joint venture. Significant iefhice is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the inwebté is not control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associatdea@nporated in these consolidated financial statenusintg the equity method of accounting. The finandetesents of associates
used for equity accounting purposes are prepared usingm@farounting policies as those of the Company for likes&etions and events in similar circumstances. Undexchigy
method, an investment in an associate is initiallpgaized in the consolidated statement of financial posétaost and adjusted thereafter to recognize the Coisysduaye of the profit
or loss and other comprehensive income of the associaga M Company’s share of losses of an associate exbeadismpany’s interest in that associate (which irduahy long-term
interests that, in substance, form part of the Compasy'Bwvestment in the associate), the Company discestiecognizing its share of further losses. Additioredés are recognized
only to the extent that the Company has incurred legabstructive obligations or made payments on behalf of fuxide.
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3.

Significant accounting policiggontinued)

Investments in associate&ontinued)

The requirements of IAS 39 are applied to determine whitlenecessary to recognize any impairment loss regpect to the Company’s investment in an associaten iéteessary, the
entire carrying amount of the investment (including godighva tested for impairment in accordance with IASIBthairment of Assetss a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount
(higher of value in use and fair value less costsltpwéh its carrying amount. Any impairment loss ogpized forms part of the carrying amount of the investnAny reversal of that
impairment loss is recognized in accordance with IAS36d extent that the recoverable amount of the invessubsequently increases.

Upon disposal of an associate that results in the Compsimglsignificant influence over that associate, ataimed investment is measured at fair value at thatatat the fair value is
regarded as its fair value an initial recognition éisancial asset in accordance with IAS 39. The diffeedmetween the previous carrying amount of the assodidatitable to the
retained interest and its fair value is included irdisermination of the gain or loss on disposal of thea@ate. In addition, the Company accounts for all amouetgqusly recognized in
other comprehensive income in relation to that associdte@ame basis as would be required if that associdifteectly disposed of the related assets or liabilitiéerdfore, if a gain
or loss previously recognized in other comprehensive incortf@abgssociate would be reclassified to profit or loss odifgosal of the related assets or liabilities, then@any
reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit osl¢as a reclassification adjustment) when it losgrfsiant influence over that associate.

When a group entity transacts with its associate, prafitl losses resulting from the transactions withshedate are recognized in the Company’ consolidated:falestatements only to
the extent of interests in the associate that areetated to the Company.
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3. Significant accounting policiggontinued)
Non-current assets held-for-sale
Non-current assets and disposal groups are classifierlchfohsale if their carrying amount will be recovereithgipally through a sale transaction rather than tiinmontinuing use. This
condition is regarded as met only when the sale isyhgialbable and the non-current asset (or disposal groepgpikable for immediate sale in its present conditiomagament must be
committed to the sale, which should be expected to qdiatifiecognition as a completed sale within one year fhendlate of classification.
Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified@dd$dnesale are measured at the lower of their previouyiogramount and fair value less costs to sell.
Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideraiceived or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estirmastomer returns, rebates and other similar allowances

Sale of goods

The Company manufactures semiconductor wafers for iternass based on the customers’ designs and specificptissisant to manufacturing agreements and/or purchasesofidhe
Company also sells certain semiconductor standard produistmers.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when the goedielivered and titles have passed, at which timbeafbtlowing conditions are satisfied:

the Company has transferred to the buyer the significsks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

the Company retains neither continuing managerial imroént to the degree usually associated with ownershigffeative control over the goods sold;

the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

it is probable that the economic benefits associatedtigttransaction will flow to the Company; and

the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of theadion can be measured reliably.
Customers have the right of return within one yearyauisto warranty and sales return provisions. The Comipgpiaglly performs tests of its products prior to shipmemntémtify yield
rate per wafer. Occasionally, product tests performed stitpment identify yields below the level agreed withchetomer. In those circumstances, the customer amangyenay provide
for a reduction to the price paid by the customer or focdists to return products and to ship replacement productsdosteener. The Company estimates the amount of sstleéss and
the cost of replacement products based on the historiodldfeeturns and warranty replacements relative ts sedevell as a consideration of any current informagganding specific
known product defects at customers that may exceed hadtinénds.

Gain on sale of real estate property

Gain from sales of real estate property is recognizezhwah the following conditions are satisfied: 1) salestract executed; 2) full payment collected, or down payweollected and
non-cancellable mortgage contract is executed with bongimstitution 3) and the respective properties have bearedsd to the buyers.
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Significant accounting policiggontinued)
Revenue recognitior(continued)
Interest income
Interest income from a financial asset is recognizeenit is probable that the economic benefits will flovthe Company and the amount of income can be measltigdadyrdnterest
income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to itheigal outstanding and at the effective interest rpfieable, which is the rate that exactly discountsregéd future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial assetabdisset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Foreign currencies

The United States dollar (“US dollar”), the currencyimich a substantial portion of the Company’s traneastare denominated, is used as the functional and repoutirency of the
Company.

In preparing the financial statements of each individuaup entity transactions in currencies other tharentity’s functional currency (foreign currengiase recognized at the rates of
exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactiorteeAtnd of each reporting period, monetary items denomiimafereign currencies are retranslated at the @@gailing at that date.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of hisiozdst in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognizafihor loss in the period in which they arise.
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Significant accounting policiggontinued)
Foreign currencies(continued)
For the purposes of presenting consolidated financial stattgntiee assets and liabilities of the Company’s forefggrations are translated into United States dollarg esthange rates
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income gpense items are translated at the average exchaegdamathe period, unless exchange rates fluctuatdisatly during that
period, in which case the exchange rates at the dfties transactions are used. Exchange differenceagrifsany, are recognized in other comprehensive in@wmeaccumulated in
equity (attributed to non-controlling interests as approgriat
On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal @dnepany’s entire interest in a foreign operation, disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that oiesua foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of significant infleee over an associate that includes a foreign operadilbof,the exchange differences accumulated in equityspect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the Company atassted to profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiaaydoes not result in the Company losing control ovesuhbsidiary, the proportionate share of accumulated exeluiffigrences
are re-attributed to non-controlling interests and areauatgnized in profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisitionstaetion or production of qualifying assets, which aretdbat necessarily take a substantial period of trgettready for
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of thests,amtil such time as the assets are substamgallly for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment dfisfgerrowings pending their expenditure on qualifyingets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for akigation.
All other borrowing costs are recognized in profit or losthénperiod in which they are incurred.
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Significant accounting policiggontinued)
Government grants
Government grants are not recognized until there soredle assurance that the Company will comply witiedinelitions attaching to them and that the grantshveilteceived.
Government grants are recognized in profit or loss on aregsit basis over the periods in which the Company re@maiz expenses the related costs for which the grantgended to
compensate. Specifically, government grants whose prioamdition is that the Company should purchase, constr@therwise acquire non-current assets are recogrszaeferred

revenue in the consolidated statements of financial positidriransferred to profit or loss on a systematic anohadtbasis over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensatioxpfemses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of gimimgdiate financial support to the Company with no éutur
related cost are recognized in profit or loss in théopen which they become receivable.

Retirement benefits

The Company’s local Chinese employees are entitledatrament benefit based on their basic salary uparenegint and their length of service in accordance wstiate-managed
pension plan. The PRC government is responsible for tlequeliability to these retired staff. The Company is nesglito make contributions to the state-managed retirgot@mtased on
a range of 20% to 22% of the monthly basic salary of nuemployees. The costs are recognized in profit or logswicurred. Employees are required to make contributiguivalent
to 6% to 8% of their basic salary.

Share-based payment arrangements

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and tbeiding similar services are measured at the fair vafitiee equity instruments at the grant date. Detaiganding the
determination of the fair value of equity-settled shargetaransactions are set out in Note 33.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the eqaitijed share-based payments is expensed on a stragghBis over the vesting period, based on the Comparigsiesof equity
instruments that will eventually vest, with a correspogdicrease in equity. At the end of each reporting petiedCompany revises its estimate of the number of eigettyments
expected to vest. The impact of the revision of the origistiinates, if any, is recognized in profit or loss gbahthe cumulative expense reflects the revised a&stjiwith a corresponding
adjustment to the equity-settled employee benefitsvesévhen share options are exercised, the amount previegsignized in the reserve will be transferred toeshaemium.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions witlepantier than employees are measured at the fair vathe gdods or services received, except where thatdhie cannot be
estimated reliably, in which case they are measat#te fair value of the equity instruments grantedisueed at the date the entity obtains the goods or théecparty renders the service.
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Significant accounting policiggontinued)
Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax tyipagable and deferred tax.
Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit foyehe. Taxable profit differs from profit before tax as regwih the consolidated statements of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because of items of income or exieatsare taxable or deductible in other years and tt&hare never taxable or deductible. The Company’s itiafalr current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have beereazhac substantively enacted by the end of the reportiigde

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences betiheecarrying amounts of assets and liabilities ircthesolidated financial statements and the corresporakrgases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilitee® generally recognized for all taxable temporary diffees. Deferred tax assets are generally recoguaizedl Heductible

temporary differences to the extent that it is probaiaetaxable profits will be available against which thideeductible temporary differences can be utilized. Seférred tax assets and
liabilities are not recognized if the temporary differemrises from goodwill or from the initial recognition ottien in a business combination of other assets anditlegbin a

transaction that affects neither the taxable profitimaccounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable tempaodferences associated with investments in subsidiane associates, except where the Company is able ttol cbatreversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that thpdeany difference will not reverse in the foreseeabledutDeferred tax assets arising from deductible tempdifieyences
associated with such investments are only recognizée textent that it is probable that there will be sidffittaxable profits against which to utilize the bdgedf the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in theefeabke future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewds @nd of each reporting period and reduced to the ¢xdiittis no longer probable that sufficient taxableitgafill be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured &bthiates that are expected to apply in the period ichithe liability is settled or the asset is realiZzeased on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted bydtof the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assééxts the tax consequences that would follow from #ener in which the Company expects, at the end oétherting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assetsiabiities.
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Significant accounting policiggontinued)
Taxation (continued)
Current and deferred tax are recognized in profit or loss.
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment held for use in the productisopply of goods or services, or for administrative purposestatesl in the consolidated statement of financial poséio
their costs, less any subsequent accumulated deprecati@ubsequent accumulated impairment losses. Suchdodeis the cost of replacing part of the property, platheguipment
and borrowing costs for longterm construction projediseifrecognition criteria are met.

The Company constructs certain of its plant and equipinegudidition to costs under the construction contracts, r@tteosts directly related to the construction of sudiitias, including
duties and tariffs, equipment installation and shippogjs, are capitalized. Interest incurred during tti#e&construction period is capitalized. Depreciatiorrded at the time assets
are ready for their intended use. Such properties arsifidasto the appropriate categories of property, plant anigregat when completed and ready for intended use. Depitof
these assets, on the same basis as other property essetences when the assets are ready for their icteisge

An item at property, plant and equipment is derecognized ugponshl or when no future economic benefits are expecteidéofiom the continued use of the asset. Any gainss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plahtgnipment is determined as the difference betweealse groceeds and the carrying amount of the asset egebignized in
profit or loss.

Depreciation is recognized so as to write off the corénfs of property, plant and equipment other than properigksr wonstruction over their estimated useful lives, ubing
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives andeségtion method are reviewed at the end of each reppeingd, with the effect of any changes in estimateaaed for on a
prospective basis.

The following useful lives are used in the calculatiodereciation.

Buildings 25 years
Plant and equipment 5-10 years
Office equipment 3-5 years

Prepaid land use right

Prepaid land use rights, which are all located in thé,RiRe recorded at cost and are charged to profit ordtesisly over the term of the land use agreementshwaitge from 50 to 70
years.

Intangible assets

Acquired intangible assets which consists primarily cfitelogy, licenses and patents, are carried at cosadessnulated amortization and any accumulated impaitioent Amortization
is computed using the straight-line method over the ¢egdeseful lives of the assets of three to ten yedues eStimated useful life and amortization method are wedeat the end of each
reporting period, with effect of any changes in estirhateg accounted for on a prospective basis.
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Significant accounting policiggontinued)
Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodi/

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviewsattiging amounts of its tangible and intangible agsedgtermine whether there is any indication that tagsets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists ré@verable amount of the asset is estimated in ordetendiee the extent of the impairment loss (if anyhewit is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asseGdimpany estimates the recoverable amount of the cammatieg unit to which the asset belongs. When soreble and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corp@sgets are also allocated to individual cash-gengnatits, or otherwise they are allocated to the sniatesip of
cash-generating units for which a reasonable and ¢ens#location basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less¢ostell and value in use. In assessing value irthesestimated future cash flows are discounted tophesent value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current marke¢ssments of the time value of money and the risks Bptecthe asset for which the estimates of future dasls have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-gergratit) is estimated to be less than its carrying anthe carrying amount of the asset (or cash-gengratit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognizecktiately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, thgngaamount of the asset (or a cash-generatingisriitcreased to the revised estimate of its recoverablengrbotiso that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carryimgnathat would have been determined had no impairment lessréeognized for the asset (or cash-generating nmptjér
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognizsdd@me.
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Significant accounting policiggontinued)
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investsniinatt are readily convertible to known amounts of cadrage subjected to an insignificant risk of changesline, with original
maturities of three months or less.

Restricted cash

Restricted cash consists of bank deposits pledged aggttass lof credit and short-term credit facilities andsadugovernment subsidies for certain research and develgmogtts.
Changes of restricted cash pledged against letter dit erad short-term credit facilities are presented asstimgpactivity in consolidated statement of cash flows.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and netzedddi value. Costs of inventories are determined on a wdighierage basis. Net realizable value represents itmatest selling
price for inventories less all estimated costs of completimincosts necessary to make the sale.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a presiggtioll (legal or constructive) as a result of a pastteités probable that the Company will be required tdeséie
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of thersumbihe obligation.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estiritite consideration required to settle the present olaligat the end of the reporting period, taking into accthentisks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provisianeasured using the cash flows estimated to dadtleresent obligation, its carrying amount is thegmegalue of those cash
flows (when the effect of the time value of money isemiat).

When some or all of the economic benefits requiredttteseprovision are expected to be recovered from a third pamrtgeivable is recognized as an asset if it is Yliytoartain that
reimbursement will be received and the amount of thevabks can be measured reliably.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are reczghiwhen a group entity becomes a party to the conttgactuasions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are ifijiaeasured at fair value. Transaction costs thatlaeetly attributable to the acquisition or issue of faiahassets and financial
liabilities other than financial assets and finahli&bilities at fair value through profit or loss aredad to or deducted from the fair value of the financiaétssor financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costsatliyattributable to the acquisition of financial assetfinancial liabilities at fair value through profit axds are recognized
immediately in profit or loss.
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Significant accounting policiggontinued)

Financial assets
Financial assets are classified into the following Higetcategories: financial assets ‘at fair value tghoprofit or loss’ (FVTPL) and ‘available-for-sale’ (AFff)ancial assets and
‘loans and receivables’. The classification depends oratiieenand purpose of the financial assets and is detrat the time of initial recognition. All regular wayrchases or sales of
financial assets are recognized and derecognized on adaedkasis. Regular way purchases or sales are msabhrasales of financial assets that require deliveageéts within the
time frame established by regulation or convention imtieketplace.
Effective interest method
The effective interest method is a method of calcidatie amortized cost of a debt instrument and of allocatiegest income over the relevant period. The effedtitezest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash recéithuding all fees and points paid or received that fannmtegral part of the effective interest rate,de&tion costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the debt im&nt; or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the mgtrgramount on initial recognition.
Income is recognized on an effective interest basis foridstruments other than those financial assetsifieabas at FVTPL.
Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL whefirthecial asset is either held for trading.
A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

it has been acquired principally for the purpose ofreih the near term; or

itis a part of a portfolio of identified financial instremts that the Company manages together and hasra eetual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

itis a derivative that is not designated and effectbva hedging instrument.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair valiih, any gains or losses arising on remeasurementmizeagn profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognizetafit or loss
incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the finamsgat and is included in the ‘other gains and lodisesitem.

37




3.

Significant accounting policiggontinued)
Financial assetqcontinued)
Available-for-sale financial assets (AFS financial assets)

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that areradthgignated as AFS or are not classified as (a) lowhseaeivables, (b) held-to-maturity investments ori(@ncial assets at fair
value through profit or loss.

Dividends on AFS equity instruments are recognized intmpfioss when the Company’s right to receive the dividendstablished.

The Company has AFS equity investments totaled at $3.&mak of December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively, that ievet quoted market price in an active market and whose fa
value cannot be reliably measured and therefore has leseured at cost less any identified impairment lossbe anhd of each reporting period. The AFS equity investiseacorded

in other assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial agstttdixed or determinable payments that are not quotedh isctive market. Loans and receivables including aadeother
receivables, and cash and bank balances and restrictedreaseasured at amortized cost using the effectieeest method, less any impairment loss.

Interest income is recognized by applying the effectiterést rate, except for short-term receivables wieeftect of discounting is immaterial.
Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, aressaddor indicators of impairment at the end of each rieggrériod. Financial assets are considered to be impained there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more eVvertitsdcurred after the initial recognition of the ficel asset, the estimated future cash flows ofthestment have been affected.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impeit could include:

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or cdarparty; or

breach of contract, such as a default or delinquencygrest or principal payments; or

it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptdinancial re-organization.
For certain categories of financial assets, suctadg receivables, assets are assessed for impairmecbbbactive basis even if they were assessed notitoyEred individually.
Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivabtmddtinclude the Company’s past experience of collectigmeats, an increase in the number of delayed paymmethis

portfolio past the average credit period, as well as obserehatges in national or local economic conditions thaetate with default on receivables.
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3. Significant accounting policiggontinued)
Financial assetqcontinued)
Impairment of financial asset¢continued)

For financial assets carried at amortized cost, the drobtire impairment loss recognized is the difference/éen the asset's carrying amount and the present ebastimated future
cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s origiffattive interest rate.

For financial assets that are carried at cost, ther@robthe impairment loss is measured as the differbateeen the asset’s carrying amount and the preseet oftloe estimated future
cash flows discounted at the current market rate ofirédr a similar financial asset. Such impairmesslwill not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is redimetthe impairment loss directly for all financial assstth the exception of trade receivables, where thgiogramount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. When a tesiéviable is considered uncollectible, it is written giast the allowance account. Subsequent recoveriesoohgnpreviously
written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortized cost, af subsequent period, the amount of the impairmentiEsgases and the decrease can be related objectivelguerd occurring
after the impairment was recognized, the previously rézed impairment loss is reversed through profit or losiset@xtent that the carrying amount of the investeethie date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amoctigadvould have been had the impairment not been recognized.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset only wheotiteactual rights to the cash flows from the asga@te, or when it transfers the financial asset atustantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another parte IEthmpany neither transfers nor retains substantillfyeerisks and rewards of ownership and continues toadht transferred
asset, the Company recognizes its retained intertfst asset and an associated liability for amountaythmave to pay. If the Company retains substantidlifr@lrisks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Compamtjncies to recognize the financial asset and alsignezes a collateralized borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entitedydifference between the asset’s carrying ameowhttee sum of the consideration received and receivabltawodmulative gain or
loss that had been recognized in other comprehensive irmah@ccumulated in equity is recognized in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entitylassified as either financial liabilities or as eguitaccordance with the substance of the contraatwahgements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity ingtnent.
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Significant accounting policiggontinued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidencessauval interest in the assets of the group after dadwdt of its liabilities. Equity instruments issuegithe Company are recognised
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as either finahdiabilities ‘at FVTPL or ‘other financial liabilies’.
Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL wlities financial liability is held for trading.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair v@lwith any gains or losses arising on remeasuremeogynized in profit or loss. The net gain or loss re@eghin profit or loss
incorporates any interest paid on the financial liabditgl is included in the ‘other gains and losses’ line.ifeair value is determined in the manner describétbia 35.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including borrowings, traded other payables and promissory notes) are subsequeatynad at amortized cost using the effective interetiod.

The effective interest method is a method of calcudatia amortized cost of a financial liability and of allimginterest expense over the relevant period. Theteféeinterest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future casimgiatg (including all fees and points paid or receivatlfthhm an integral part of the effective interest ransaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of timnéial liability or (where appropriate) shorter periodh®net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Company derecognizes financial liabilities when,antgd when, the Company’s obligations are discharged, Hadaoer they expire. The difference between the cagrgimount of the
financial liability derecognized and the consideratioid [@ad payable is recognized in profit or loss.

Derivative financial instruments

The Company enters into a variety of derivative finaricstruments to manage its exposure to interest ratéosgidn exchange rate risks, including foreign excadogward contracts,
interest rate swaps and cross currency swaps. Fdettais of derivative financial instruments are disclasedote 35.

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value & ttate the derivative contracts are entered into andilasecguently remeasured to their fair value at the enalcbfreporting period.
The resulting gain or loss is recognized in profit or iogsediately unless the derivative is designated andtiefieas a hedging instrument, in which event thengnaif the recognition in
profit or loss depends on the nature of the hedge relatmnshi
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4.

Transition to IFRS

The Company is dual listed in New York Stock ExchangeHony Kong Stock Exchange. In order to improve compatghiiith peers within semiconductor industry and redueectist of
financial reporting under different accounting framewdk, Company started to prepare financials statemeatscordance with IFRS for the year ended December 32, 281disclosed
in Note 1, these consolidated financial statements reprréd®e Company’s initial presentation of the finahcesults of operations and financial position underSf&t the year ended
December 31, 2012. As a result, these consolidated finatai@ents have been prepared in accordance with IFRR8<lt;time Adoption of International Financial Reporting
Standards”. Previously, the Company prepared its annusblédated financial statements in accordance with US IBAA

IFRS 1 requires the presentation of comparative informascat January 1, 2011, the transition date and subsequapdrative period as well as the consistent and retridspe
application of IFRS accounting policies. To assist Wiéhtransition, the provisions of IFRS 1 allow for certa@mdatory and optional exemptions for first-time adopters dwialke the
retrospective application of all IFRSs. The significax@mption applied under IFRS 1 in preparing these consdliflatancial statements and the significant differersseen the
Company’s accounting policy under US GAAP and those applyeghe Company under IFRS are discussed below.

IFRS 1 First-Time Adoption of International FinancialpReting Standards allows first-time adopters certain exengpfrom the retrospective application of certain IFRS.

The Company has applied the following exemptions:

IFRS 2Share-based Paymems not been applied to equity instruments in share-lgg@ekent transactions that were granted on or beforemimarer, 2002, nor has it been applied
to equity instruments granted after November 7, 2002/ésied before January 1, 2011.

The Company has designated unquoted equity instrumentathidduary 1, 2011 as availablefor-sale investments.
Estimates
The estimates at January 1, 2011 and at December 31, 20ddnaigtent with those made for the same dates in acoerdédth U.S. GAAP .
The estimates used by the Company to present these arnimoaotordance with IFRS reflect conditions at Janlia®911, the date of transition to IFRS and as of Deeefit, 2011.
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4.

Transition to IFRScontinued)

Reconciliation of statement of financial position under IFRS fronath@unts previously reported under U.S. GAAP as at January 1, 201b{dedesition to IFRS)

Effect of IFRS as at
Transition to January 1,
Notes U.S. GAAP IFRSs 2011
USD'000 USD’000 USD’000
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 2,351,863 2,351,863
Prepaid land use right 78,798 78,798
Intangible assets 173,821 173,821
Investments in associates* 7,665 7,665
Deferred tax assets E 112,688 112,688
Other assets* 2,393 2,393
Total non-current assets 2,727,228 2,727,228
Current assets
Inventories 213,404 213,404
Prepaid operating expenses* 17,705 17,705
Trade and other receivables* 264,048 264,048
Other financial assets* 3,149 3,149
Restricted cash 161,350 161,350
Cash and bank balances 515,808 515,808
Total current assets 1,175,464 1,175,464
Total assets 3,902,692 3,902,692
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4.

Transition to IFRScontinued)

Reconciliation of statement of financial position under IFRS from tleeiats previously reported under U.S. GAAP as at January 1, 2011 (dasmsition to IFRS)

Equity and liabilities

Capital and reserves
Ordinary shares

Share premium

Reserves

Accumulated deficit

Equity attributable to owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests
Total equity

Non-current liabilities
Borrowings

Deferred tax liabilities
Deferred government grant
Promissory notes
Long-term financial liabilities
Other liabilities

Total non-current liabilities
Current liabilities

Trade and other payabfes
Borrowings

Accrued liabilities
Promissory notes

Other financial liabilities
Current tax liabilities

Total current liabilities
Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

*

Effect of IFRS as at
Transition to January 1,
Notes U.S. GAAP IFRSs 2011
USD’000 USD’000 USD’000

10,934 — 10,934
B, D 3,858,642 (96,496) 3,762,146
D (1,092) 40,539 39,447
B (1,698,947 55,957 (1,642,990
2,169,537 — 2,169,537

C 39,004 (37,759 1,245
2,208,541 (37,759 2,170,782

178,596 — 178,596

1,094 — 1,094

49,143 — 49,143

56,327 — 56,327

C — 37,759 37,759

9,646 — 9,646

294,806 37,759 332,565

614,055 — 614,055

705,514 — 705,514

45,357 — 45,357

29,374 — 29,374

3,152 — 3,152

1,893 — 1,893

1,399,345 — 1,399,345

1,694,151 37,759 1,731,910

3,902,692 — 3,902,692

US GAAP figures have been reclassified to conform to IpRSentation. Please refer to Note A below details.
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4. Transition to IFR&ontinued)

Reconciliation of statement of financial position under IFRS from tloeiars previously reported under U.S. GAAP as at December 31, 2011

Effect of IFRS as at
transition to December 31
Notes U.S. GAAP IFRSs 2011
USD’000 USD’000 USD’000
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 2,516,578 — 2,516,578
Prepaid land use right 77,231 — 77,231
Intangible assets 179,279 — 179,279
Investments in associates 15,856 — 15,856
Deferred tax assets E 31,787 — 31,787
Other assets 45,685 — 45,685
Total non-current assets 2,866,416 — 2,866,416
Current assets
Inventories 207,308 — 207,308
Prepaid operating expenses 52,805 — 52,805
Trade and other receivables 200,905 — 200,905
Other financial asséts 1,973 — 1,973
Restricted cash 136,907 — 136,907
Cash and bank balances 261,615 — 261,615
Total current assets 861,513 — 861,513
Total assets 3,727,929 — 3,727,929

*

US GAAP figures have been reclassified to confortRRS presentation. Please refer to Note A below foildeta
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4.

Transition to IFR&ontinued)

Reconciliation of statement of financial position under IFRS from tloeiats previously reported under U.S. GAAP as at December 31, 2011 (cdptinue

Equity and liabilities

Capital and reserves
Ordinary shares

Convertible Preference shares
Share premium

Reserves

Accumulated deficit

Equity attributable to owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests
Total equity

Non-current liabilities
Borrowings

Deferred tax liabilities
Deferred government grant
Long-term financial liabilities
Promissory notes

Total non-current liabilities
Current liabilities

Trade and other payabfes
Borrowings

Accrued liabilities
Promissory notes

Other financial liabilities
Current tax liabilities

Total current liabilities

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

*

Effect of IFRS as at
transition to December 31,
Notes U.S. GAAP IFRSs 2011
USD’000 USD’000 USD’000
10,995 — 10,995
178 — 178
B, D 4,240,530 (158,395) 4,082,135
D 3,846 37,469 41,315
B (2,010,733 120,926 (1,889,807
2,244,816 — 2,244,816
C 4,200 (3,018 1,182
2,249,016 (3,018 2,245,998
72,361 — 72,361
1,333 — 1,333
125,335 — 125,335
C — 3,018 3,018
28,560 — 28,560
227,589 3,018 230,607
375,748 — 375,748
798,782 — 798,782
45,674 — 45,674
29,374 — 29,374
1,683 — 1,683
63 — 63
1,251,324 — 1,251,324
1,478,913 3,018 1,481,931
3,727,929 — 3,727,929
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4.

Transition to IFR&ontinued)

Reconciliation of total comprehensive income under IFRS fromrtioeints previously reported undgérS. GAAP for the year ended December 31, 2011

Effect of IFRS for the
Translation to year ended
Notes U.S. GAAP IFRSs 2011
USD’000 USD’000 USD’000
Continuing operations
Revenue 1,319,466 — 1,319,466
Cost of sales (1,217,52% — (1,217,52%
Gross profit 101,941 — 101,941
Research and development (191,473) — (191,473)
Sales and Marketing expenses (32,559) — (32,559)
General and Administration expenses (57,435) — (57,435)
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment (17,691) — (17,691)
Finance costs C (20,583) (1,320) (21,903)
Interest income 4,724 — 4,724
Other incomé 13,718 — 13,718
Other gains or lossés 17,081 — 17,081
Share of profits of associates 4,479 — 4,479
Loss before tax (177,798) (1,320) (179,118)
Income tax expense (82,503 — (82,503
Loss for the year from continuing operations (260,301 (1,320 (261,621
Discontinued operations
Profit for the year from discontinued operations 14,741 — 14,741
Loss for the year (245,560 (1,320 (246,880
Other comprehensive income
Item that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Exchange differences on translating foreign operations 4,938 — 4,938
Total comprehensive loss for the year (240,622 — (241,942

*

US GAAP figures have been reclassified to confortRRS presentation. Please refer to Note A below foildeta
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4. Transition to IFRScontinued)
Notes to the reconciliation of financial position as at January 1, 2@Jand December 31, 2011 and total comprehensive income for theayended December 31, 2011
A Reclassification made to the statement of financial positaomd statement o€omprehensive income
U.S. GAAP figures have been reclassified to conform t&lprResentation. Reclassification mainly comprise of:

Available-for-sale investment in unlisted shares is@néed as separate line item in IFRS financial statsmvhich was recorded in Equity investment in previo8s GAAP
financial statements

Other receivables, previously recorded in Prepaid expedsatiear current assets in previous U.S. GAAP finantéements, are reclassified to Trade and other recegrable
in IFRS financial statements

Other financial assets is presented as separatedinén IFRS financial statements while is recordeBriepaid expense and other current assets in previSUSHNAP
financial statements

Short-term borrowing and current portion of long-term deés@nted separately in U.S. GAAP financial staten@st®iggregated and presented as Borrowings in IFRS
financial statements

Certain other current liability which was recorded ioraed expenses and other current liabilities in previo8s GAAP financial statements are reclassified taldrand
other payables in IFRS financial statements

Current financial liabilities is presented as sepdrageitem in IFRS financial statements which wasarded in Accrued expenses and other current liabiitiprevious U.S.
GAAP financial statements

Other operating income and Others, net are aggregadqutesented as Other income in IFRS financial statsmen
Loss from sale of equipment and other fixed assets andgRar@irency exchange gain are aggregated and pressnféttier gains or losses in IFRS financial statements
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4. Transition to IFRScontinued)

Notes to the reconciliation of financial position as at January 1, 2@land December 31, 2011 and total compre hensive income for theayended December 31, 201tontinued)

B

Convertible preferred shares — beneficial conversion faatu

Under US GAAP, a beneficial conversion feature refethe preferential price of certain convertible equityrimsents an investor receives when the effective coiorepsice of the
equity instruments in lower than the fair market vaitikhe common stock to which the convertible equity insémt is convertible into at the date of issuance. US BAgquires the
recognition of the difference between the effective cmsiva price of the convertible equity instrument and derharket value of the common stock as a deemed dividend.
Under IFRS, the deemed dividend of US$56.0 million relatgedo before 2011 and US$65.0 million in 2011 are not reqtorbd recorded.

Preferred shares

Under US GAAP, the Company presented the redeemahlenaleted dividend preferred shares in Brite SemiconductqyaCation (“Brite”) and redeemable convertible preferred
shares in Semiconductor Manufacturing Internationa) drporation (“AT”) that were not owned by the Companpas controlling interest. The accretion of interast o
non-controlling interest (or “NCI”) was separately diseld®n the face of the statements of comprehensive income.

IFRS requires an entity that issues a financiatunstnt with characteristics of both liabilities andiggto separately classify the liability and equity compuseThe liability
component is measured at fair value at inception, andeaigual proceeds are allocated to the equity componemtit@hrecognition, the fair value of the liabiligomponent is
determined using the prevailing market interest oflammion-convertible debt. The accretion of interest to rett@dedeemable convertible preferred shares at redemplienisa
recognized as interest expense. The value assignezldoribersion option of the redeemable convertible prefererdsis insignificant at initial recognition. As @uk, the accretion
of interest on NCI totaled at US$1.3 million was adjustefthance cost for the year ended December 31, 2011 antbntmelling interest relates to Brite totaled at US$3.0ionilwas
adjusted from NCI to long-term financial liability as cé&mber 31, 2011.
NCl relates to Brite and AT totaled at US$37.8 million wdpisted from NCI to long-term financial liabilities @sJanuary 1, 2011.

Equity settled employee benefits
In order to conform to the current financial year’s pnéstion as a result of adoption IFRS, equity settled empliogeefits reserve has been presented as a component ofeReser

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets have been reclassified as nantassets under IFRS. Under US GAAP, deferred tatsaesseclassified as current or non-current basecdearidissification of the
related asset for financial reporting.
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5.

Critical accounting judgments and key sources of egtimancertainty

In the application of the Company’s accounting policigsich are described in Note 3, the Company is requirecke fudgments, estimates and assumptions about thengeamgounts of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparentdtber sources. The estimates and associated assumpéidiasad on historical experience and other factorsrthabasidered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estima

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewad @ngoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimateseogmized in the period in which the estimate is reviisthe revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revisionfatutle periods if the revision affects both current aiaréuperiods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning theeuand other key sources of estimation uncertaititeatnd of the reporting period, that have a significaktaf causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets anditiabilvithin the next financial year.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (weighted gema net realizable value (NRV), with NRV being testfmated selling price in the ordinary course of busilesssthe estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessaryadhmeadale.” The Company estimates the recoverabilitguich finished goods and work-in-progress based primarilythpon
latest invoice prices and current market conditionselNRV of a good drop below its carrying value, the Comparyrds a write-down to cost of sales for the difference betree
carrying cost and NRV.

Also the Company regularly inspects and reviews its ioverg to identify slow-moving and obsolete inventories wherQompany identifies items of inventories which are shaaving on
obsolete, the Company will write down inventories in tlegtry
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5.

Critical accounting judgments and key sources of eimancertaintyfcontinued)
Key sources of estimation uncertaintycontinued)
Depreciation and amortization

The Company operates in a capital-intensive businessieyngdriodically review and assess the estimated ugefoff the Company’s assets based on expected ugeg tato account
effects of obsolescence, demand, and other economic faltterestimated useful life and dates that the equipisg@haced into intended use reflects the Company’s estiofidhe periods
that the Company intends to derive future economic beffefitsthe use of the Company’s plant and equipment, lamdigists and intangible assets.

This estimate is based on the management’s experietioe adtual useful lives and residual values, if angsskts of similar nature and functions. It could chaiggeficantly as a result of
technical innovations and actions of its competitors.Jdmapany will increase or decrease depreciation and a@uoth charge where useful lives and residual valuesstireated to be
more than, or less than, previously estimated.

Long-lived assets

The Company assesses the impairment of long-lived agketsevents or changes in circumstances indicatéhthaarrying value of asset or cash-generating‘@&U") may not be
recoverable. Factors that the Company considers in deeitiieig to perform an impairment review include, butraridimited to significant under-performance of a besior product line
in relation to expectations, significant negative indust economic trends, and significant changes or plhohanges in the use of the assets.

An impairment analysis is performed at the lowest lefédentifiable independent cash flows for an asset dd.G& impairment exists when the carrying value oaset or
cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amourthwehihe higher of its fair value less costs to aetl its value in use. The fair value less costs tacaltllation is based on available
data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arngth|dor similar assets or observable market priceshessmental costs for disposing of the asset. The valuge calculation is
based on a discounted cash flow model.

The Company makes subjective judgments in determinirigdependent cash flows that can be related to a Sp&#U based on its asset usage model and manufactupidgilies. The
Company measures the recoverability of assets thateritinue to be used in the Company’s operations by congpdue carrying value of CGU to the Company’s estimbtieeorelated total
future discounted cash flows. If a CGU's carrying vatugot recoverable through the related discounted oask fithe impairment loss is measured by comparing theraliife between the
CGUr's carrying value and its recoverable amount, basededrett information available, including market pricediscounted cash flow analysis. The recoverable amoumiss sensitive
to the discount rate used for the discounted cash flow medeék as the expected future cash-inflows and the groate used for extrapolation purposes.
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5.

Critical accounting judgments and key sources of eimancertaintyfcontinued)
Key sources of estimation uncertaintycontinued)
Long-lived assets (continued)

In order to remain technologically competitive in semicatmuindustry, the Company has entered into technologgféniaand technology license arrangements with thirdesain an attempt
to advance the Company’s process technologies. The paynasfor such technology licenses are recorded adaggible asset or as a deferred cost and amortizedtaighisline

basis over the estimated useful life of the asset. Dingp@ny routinely reviews the remaining estimateduldieks of these intangible assets and deferred cossCdmpany also evaluates
these intangible assets and deferred costs for impaimrhenever events or changes in circumstances iedi@ttheir carrying amounts may not be recoverablenwie recoverable
amounts of such assets are determined to exceed thgingamounts, the Company will impair such assetsnaité down their carrying amounts to recoverable amauthta year when
such determination was made.

Share-based Compensation Expense

The fair value of options and shares issued pursuant @otmpany’s option plans at the grant date was estirnatad the Black-Scholes option pricing model. This moded developed
for use in estimating the fair value of traded optionshhage no vesting restrictions and are fully trandfleraln addition, option-pricing models require the inptighly subjective
assumptions, including the expected term of the optiongstiated forfeiture rates and the expected stock poiedility. The expected term of options granted represietperiod of time
that options granted are expected to be outstanding. The Gpagianated forfeiture rates using historical dastimate option exercise and employee termination whgipricing
formula. The Company uses projected volatility rates based the Company’s historical volatility rates. Thessuagptions are inherently uncertain. Different assumptand judgments
would affect the Company’s calculation of the fairugabf the underlying ordinary shares for the options gdasetnd the valuation results and the amount of sharel-basgensation would
also vary accordingly.

Taxes

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretatibcomplex tax regulations, changes in tax laws, ladinount and timing of future taxable income. Giverwitde range of international
business relationships and the long-term nature and egitypdf existing contractual agreements, differasnggsing between the actual results and the assusptiatte, or future changes to
such assumptions, could necessitate future adjustrogatsincome and expense already recorded. The Compabligists provisions, based on reasonable estimates, for possible
consequences of audits by the tax authorities of tipecéige counties in which it operates. The amountaf puovisions is based on various factors, such as exgerdf previous tax
audits and differing interpretations of tax regulatibypshe taxable entity and the responsible tax auth@ikgh differences of interpretation may arise on a wadeety of issues depending
on the conditions prevailing in the respective domicile @@bmpany companies.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tayslts#ige extent that it is probable that taxable prdfitve available against which the losses can be edli&Significant management
judgment is required to determine the amount of deferregdstsets that can be recognized, based upon the likihg thnd the level of future taxable profits togethehwak planning
strategies.
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5. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of etitimancertainty{continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertaintycontinued)
Taxes (continued)

As at December 31, 2012, a deferred tax asset of US$0.dmfibecember 31, 2011: USD1.8 million) in relation to unusetbtsses has been recognized in the Company’s consolidated
statement of financial position. The realizability &f tteferred tax asset mainly depends on whether sufffmiefits or taxable temporary differences will be availdbltne future. In cases
where the actual future profits generated are |essekpected, a material reversal of deferred tax asagtanse, which would be recognized in profit or losstergeriod in which such a
reversal takes place. Further details on taxes arogéstin Note 10.

Fair value of financial instruments

When the fair value of financial assets and finari@ilities recorded in the statement of financial positannot be derived from active markets, their fair valwetermined using
valuation techniques including the discounted cash flodaih The inputs to these models are taken from obserwalets where possible, but where this is not feasibiiegree of
judgment is required in establishing fair values. Tkginents include considerations of inputs such as liquigdity credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumiahout these factors
could affect the reported fair value of financial instroteeSee Note 35 for further discussion.

Impairment of trade and other receivable

The Company assesses at the end of each reporting peettnthere is any objective evidence that trade and ratbeivable is impaired. To determine whether there itbge
evidence of impairment, the Company considers factors stitle grobability of insolvency or significant financiaffidulties of the debtor and default or significant delapayments.

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, thep@oyrtakes into consideration the estimation of futusé laws. The amount of the impairment loss is measaselte difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the preseptobdistimated future cash flows (excluding future itledses that have not been incurred) discounted ahtirecfal asset’s original
effective interest rate (that is, the effective iet#rate computed at initial recognition). Where theadtiture cash flows are less than expected, a imbiepairment loss may arise. The
carrying amount of the Company’s trade and other recehattihe end of the reporting period is disclosed in Note 24.

52




6. Segment information
The Company operates in three principal geographical aredsited States, Europe, and Asia Pacific.

The Company is engaged principally in the computer-aideigjnlemanufacturing and trading of integrated circliite Company’s chief operating decision maker has beetifieléas the
Chief Executive Officer, who reviews consolidated resiaslim operations when making decisions about allocegisgurces and assessing performance of the Compar@oiigany
operates in one segment. The Company’s revenue fromuwagtoperations from external customers by locationtailéel below.

Revenue from extemal

customers
Year ended Year ended
12/31/12 12/31/11
USD’000 USD’000
United States 940,369 726,011
Europe 38,811 35,256
Asia Pacifi¢ 28,177 21,244
Taiwan 113,227 105,788
Japan 3,423 356
Mainland China and Hong Kong 577,591 430,811
1,701,598 1,319,466
* Not including Taiwan, Japan, Mainland China and Honggko
The following table summarizes property, plant and equipofehe Company by location.
Property, plant and e quipment
12/31/12 12/31/11
USD’000 USD’000
United States 55 75
Europe — 5
Taiwan 19 23
Hong Kong 3,640 3,832
Mainland China 2,381,721 2,512,643
2,385,435 2,516,578

Substantially all other non-current assets excludaigrred tax and financial instruments of the Compa@yarated in Mainland China.
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7.

Significant Customers
The following table summarizes net revenue and accoergsvable for customers which accounted for 10% or mores§@ccounts receivable and net sales:

Net Revenue Accounts receivable

Year ended December 31, December 31,
2012 2011 2012 2011
A 383,626 275,502 43,246 43,468
B 282,946 165,180 57,865 27,921
A 23% 21% 13% 21%
B 17% 13% 18% 13%
Other gains or losses
Year ended Year ended
12/31/12 12/31/11
USD’000 USD’000
Gain (loss) on disposal of property, plant and equipment 19,325 (508)
Foreign exchange gain 3,895 17,589
23,220 17,081
The gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment in 2012 priosarily from disposal of the living quarters in Shanghai
Finance costs
Year ended Year ended
12/31/12 12/31/11
USD’000 USD’000
Interest expense 54,712 39,567
Accretion of interest to preferred shareholders of a sursidi 1,206 1,320
Total interest expense for financial liabilities nasdified as at FVTPL 55,918 40,887
Less: amounts capitalized 16,458 18,984
39,460 21,903

The weighted average interest rate on funds borrowed ggreré.97% per annum (2011: 3.62% per annum).
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10.

Income taxes relating to continuing operations

Income tax recognized in profit or loss

Current tax — Enterprise Income Tax

Deferred tax

Current tax — Land Appreciation Tax

Total income tax (benefit) expense raised in the cupesr relating to continuing operations

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciléd tctounting profit as follows:

Profit (loss) before tax from continuing operations

Income tax expense (benefit) calculated at 15% (2011: 15%)

Effect of tax holiday and tax concession

Expenses to be recognized in future periods

Effect of unused tax losses not recognized as defexreabsets

Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries operaitmgther jurisdictions
Others

Land Appreciation Tax (after tax) — gain on sale of livijuarters

Income tax (benefit) expense (relating to continuing djueTs)

Year ended Year ended
12/31/12 12/31/11
USD’000 USD’000
1,071 1,363
(12,486) 81,140
2,313 —
(9,102 82,503
Year ended Year ended
12/31/12 12/31/11
USD’000 USD’000
13,439 (179,118
2,016 (26,868)
(3,045) (2,329)
(3,742) (20,420)
(6,574) 130,040
(1,087) 2,508
1,364 (428)
1,966 —
(9,102 82,503

The tax rate used for the 2012 and 2011 reconciliation abdive c®rporate tax rate of 15% payable by most of the Congpantjties in Mainland China under tax law in thaisiiction.
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10.

Income taxes relating to continuing operati@ntinued)

Current tax liabilities

Current tax liabilities
Income tax payable — Land Appreciation Tax

Income tax payable — Others

Deferred tax balances

The following is the analysis of deferred tax asd@bi(ities) presented in the consolidated statemernhah€ial position:

Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax liabilities

Deferred tax assets

Allowances and reserves

Net operating loss carry forwards
Property plant and equipment
Accrued expenses

Net deferred tax assets

Deferred tax liabilities

Capitalized interest

Unrealized exchange gain
Depreciation for asset held for sale

12/31/12 12/31/11 01/01/11
USD’000 USD’000 USD’000

2,313 — —

8 63 1,893

2,321 63 1,893
12/31/12 12/31/11 01/01/11
UsSD’000 USD’000 USD’000

43,380 31,787 112,688

(440 (1,333 (1,099

42,940 30,454 111,594
12/31/12 12/31/11 01/01/11
USD’000 USD’000 USD’000

3,829 1,664 1,321

372 1,767 6,020

38,955 25,966 103,030

224 2,390 2,317

43,380 31,787 112,688

(373) (1,266) (1,049)

(64) (67) (45)

3 — —

(440 (1,333 (1,099
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10.

Income taxes relating to continuing operati@ntinued)
Deferred tax balanceqcontinued)

2012.12.31

Deferred tax (liabilities) assets in relation to:
Property plant and equipment

Allowances and reserves

Accrued expenses

Capitalized interest

Unrealized exchange gain

Depreciation for asset held for sale

Others

2011.12.31

Deferred tax (liabilities) assets in relation to:
Property plant and equipment

Allowances and reserves

Accrued expenses

Capitalized interest

Unrealized exchange gain

Others

Opening Recognized in Closing
Balance profit or loss balance
USD’000 USD’000 USD’000
25,966 12,989 38,955
1,664 2,165 3,829
2,390 (2,166) 224
(1,266) 893 (373)
(67) 3 (64)
— (3) (3)
1,767 (1,395 372
30,454 12,486 42,940
Opening Recognized in Closing
balance profit or loss balance
USD’000 USD’000 USD’000
103,030 (77,064) 25,966
1,321 343 1,664
2,317 73 2,390
(1,049) (217) (1,266)
(45) (22) (67)
6,020 (4,253 1,767
111,594 (81,140 30,454

Under the New EIT Law, the profits of a foreign investatkrprise arising in 2008 and beyond that will be distribtatéts immediate holding company outside mainland Chifigbes
subject to a withholding tax rate of 10%. A lower withhotgliax rate may be applied if there is a favorabler&aty between mainland China and the jurisdiction ofattesgn holding
company. For example, holding companies in Hong Kong thadlap tax residents in Hong Kong are eligible for a 5%hweiding tax on dividends under the Tax Memorandum between
China and the Hong Kong Special Administrative RegiorceSthe Company intends to reinvest its earnings to expgahbdsinesses in mainland China, its mainland Chibaidiaries do

not intend to distribute profits to their immediate fordigiding companies for the foreseeable future.




10.

Income taxes relating to continuing operati@ntinued)
Deferred tax balanceqcontinued)
Semiconductor Manufacturing International Corporatiangsrporated in the Cayman Islands which is tax exempted.

Prior to January 1, 2008, the subsidiaries incorporated PRIG&were governed by the Income Tax Law of the PRCeEnimg Foreign Investment and Foreign Enterprises amduga
local income tax laws (the “FEIT Laws”).

The Law of the People’s Republic of China on Income Thbe{/ EIT Law”) was promulgated on March 16, 2007, which beceffeetive January 1, 2008. Under the New EIT Law,
domestically-owned enterprises and foreign invested entesp{fiBIES”) are subject to a uniform tax rate of 25%eEprises which were entitled to a preferential tae o 25% prior to
January 1, 2008 could gradually transit to 25% throughout ayéigeperiod. Pursuant to Guofa [2007] No. 39 (“Circular No. 388 application tax rates during the five-year tréms
period are as follows: 18% in 2008, 20% in 2009, 22% in 2010, 24% in BA1258&06 in 2012 and thereafter. The tax holiday, which eady kicked off before the effective date of the
EIT law, may continue to be enjoyed till the end of thédagl

Pursuant to Caishui Circular [2008] No. 1 (“Circular No) ifomulgated on February 22, 2008, integrated circuit produetiemprises whose total investment exceeds RMB8,00@milli
(approximately US$1,095 million) or whose integrated ctscliave a line width of less than 0.25 micron are etttiigoreferential tax rate of 15%. Enterprises with anaijwer period of
more than 15 years are entitled to a full exemption frmorhe tax for five years starting from the first prdfieayear after utilizing all prior years’ tax lossasd 50% reduction of the tax
for the following five years. Pursuant to Caishui Qiac [2009] No. 69 (“Circular No. 69”), the 50% reduction shouldased on the statutory tax rate of 25% unless the inEomeate is
reduced by the tax incentives granted by Circular No. 39.

On February 9, 2011, the State Council of China issuedaG20611] No. 4 (“Circular No. 4”), the Notice on CertainiPias to Further Encourage the Development of the Softesade
Integrated Circuit Industries which reinstates theiBcentives stipulated by Circular No. 1 for the softwand integrated circular enterprises.

On April 20, 2012, State Tax Bureau issued Cai Shui [2012PN ¢ Circular No. 27”), the income tax policies for en@ming the development of integrated circuit industriés t
implementation rule of Circular No. 4.
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10. Income taxes relating to continuing operati(@mntinued)
Deferred tax balanceqcontinued)
The detailed tax status of SMIC’s principal PRC entiseslaborated as follows:
1) Semiconductor Manufacturing International (Shanghai) Corporation (SMIS)
Pursuant to relevant tax regulation, SMIS began a &04g& holiday (five year full exemption followed by fiveayehalf reduction) from 2004 after utilizing all prior ygatax losses.

As SMIS is a manufacturing company located in ShargRaidlong New Area, it can continue its tax holiday basdideainansitional income tax rate granted by CircNar 39
instead of the statutory income tax rate. The incomeataxfor SMIS was 12% in 2011, 12.5% in 2012 and will be 12.52018. After that, the income tax rate will be 15%.

2)  Semiconductor Manufacturing International (Beijing) Corporation (SMIB) and @erductor Manufacturing International (Tianjin) Corporation (SMIT)

In accordance with Circular No. 4 and Circular No. 2VJEBand SMIT are entitled to the preferential tax ratd5% and 10-year tax holiday (five year full exemptiondiaiéd by
five year half reduction) subsequent to their first profitking years after utilizing all prior tax losses hatater than December 31, 2017. Both entities wereduradative loss
positions as of December 31, 2012 and the tax holiday has not focgke effect.

Unrecognized deductible temporary differences, unuse@x losses

At the end of the reporting period, no deferred tax asset@agnized in respect of tax losses of US$1,199.2 milliené®ber 31, 2011: US$951.9 million) due to the unpredictability
future profit streams, of which $305.1 million, $448.5 milli$83.4 million, $193.5 million and $168.7 million will expire in 202814, 2015, 2016 and 2017, respectively. At the end of
the reporting period, the Company had deductible tempordeyetites of US$580.4 million (31 December 2011: US$634.9 milliamlation to which no deferred tax asset was
recognized as it is not probable that taxable profit wilhbailable against which the deductible temporary diffeze can be utilized.
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11. Profit (loss) for the year

Profit (loss) for the year from continuing operations has beearrived at after charging (crediting)

11.1

11.2

11.3

11.4

Impairment losses (reversal of impairment losses) @inancial assets

Year ended Year ended
12/31/12 12/31/11
USD’000 USD’'000
Allowance on trade receivables (see Note 24) 4,615 551
Reversal of allowance on doubtful trade receivables (2,095 (6,400
2,520 (5,849

In 2011, the Company settled certain disputes with reispebtrd party debtors by entering into contractually big@gigreements which legally released the Company froi@ice
obligations totaling $19.0 million. The forgiveness of debtlieen recorded as a reduction of general and administexipemse and other income respectively. In addition, the
recovery of bad debt expense of $6.4 million and $2.0 million eesrded as a reduction of general and administrative sepgenthe year ended December 31, 2011 and 2012,

respectively.

Impairment losses on property, plant and equipment

Impairment losses on property, plant and equipment

Depreciation and amortization expense

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Amortization of intangible assets and land use right
Total depreciation and amortization expense

Employee benefits expense

Wages, salaries and social security contributions
Bonus

Paid annual leave

Non-monetary benefits

Year ended Year ended
12/31/12 12/31/11
USD’000 USD’000
— 17,691
Year ended Year ended
12/31/12 12/31/11
USD’000 USD’000
531,823 518,840
35,076 33,071
566,899 551,911
Year ended Year ended
12/31/12 12/31/11
USD’000 USD’000
206,807 190,901
28,048 10,431
738 310
12,880 12,494



Termination benefits 7 5,018
Equity-settled share-based payments (Note 33) 7,174 5,336
Total employee benefits expense 255,654 224,490
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11.

12

Profit (loss) for the yeafcontinued)
Profit (loss) for the year then continuing operations hasden arrived after charging (crediting) (continued)

11.5 Royalties expense

Year ended Year ended
12/31/12 12/31/11
USD’000 USD’000
Royalties expense 28,993 22,795

11.6 Government grant

Government subsidies under specific R&D projects

The Company received government awards of US$54.1 milliov88d26.1 million and recognized US$31.0 million and US$42.6 milfidime form of reimbursement of certain
R&D expenses in 2012 and 2011 for several specific R&D piojespectively. The awards are deferred until the toibes specified in the terms of the subsidy have beeheda
at which time they are recorded as a reduction in R&izese.

Government subsidies for specific intended use

The Company received government subsidies in cash of US#ilichmnd US$0.8 million in 2012 and 2011 respectively, whiels determined based on the estimated interest
expense to be incurred, on the Company’s budgeted outgfdrmtiowings. The government subsidy is recorded ab#ityaupon receipt and until the requirements (if aspecified
in the terms of the subsidy have been reached, at vitiehttey are recorded as a reduction in interest egp&he Company recorded US$1.2 million and US$0.8 million as
reduction of interest expense in 2012 and 2011.

Discontinued operations
Disposal of Semiconductor Manufacturing Intermational (AT) Corporation

On March 1, 2011, the Company sold its majority ownerstigrest in Semiconductor Manufacturing InternatioAdl) (Corporation (“AT”) and deconsolidated the entity. Aseault, all
previously issued preferred securities by AT were caadellhe Company retained a 10% interest in AT and atcfumsuch investment as available-for-sale investagittno longer has
a controlling financial interest nor significant irdlice over AT. The Company reported the results of thesATdiscontinued operation in the condensed consolidatedestéterh
comprehensive income. No cash or other consideration wasedd® the Company in conjunction with the disposition.

The Company recorded a gain of US$17.1 million on the decdasioln of AT equal to the difference between (i) the sfi(a) the fair value of the retained non-controllingfast in AT,
and (b) the carrying amount of the aforementioned nonalting interest in AT, and (ii) the carrying amount&f's assets and liabilities. Income from discontinued djmrs of US$14.7
million represents both the results of operations ofokTtHe period from January 1, 2011 to the date it was deddateml and the gain on deconsolidation of AT.
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13.

Discontinued operatior{gsontinued)

Analysis of profit for the year from discontinued operatons

Year ended
12/3111
USD'000
Profit for the year from discontinued operations
Revenue 4,005
Cost of sales (5,41)
Gross loss (1,406)
Total expenses (956)
Net loss for the period (2,362)
Gain on disposition of discontinued operations, net of taxes 17,103
Profit for the year from discontinued operations 14,741
Cashflow from discontinued operations
The net cash flows incurred by AT are, as follows:
Net cash outflow from operating activities (1,201)
Net cash outflow from investing activities (1,013)
Net cash outflow from financing activities (713
Net cash outflow (2,929
Directors’ remuneration
Year ended Year ended
12/31/12 12/3111
USD'000 USD'000
Salaries 1,411 1,160
Equity-settled share-based payments 1,113 1,145
2,524 2,305

The Company granted nil and 113,205,662 options to purchase grslaaes of the Company to the directors in 2012 and 20tihglie year ended December 31, 2012, no stock options
was exercised and 500,000 were expired. And during theepelad December 31, 2011, 1,000,000 stock options were exercised31d98, stock options were lapsed in connection
with certain directors ceasing to continue serving esctbrs.

The Company granted nil and 46,600,465 restricted share upiisctease ordinary shares of the Company to the direct@®&12 and 2011. During the year ended December 31, 2012,
11,650,116 restricted share units automatically vestedanarastricted share units were lapsed. And duringeieended December 31, 2011, 15,114,588 restricted share units
automatically vested and 18,473,385 restricted share unitslayesed in connection with certain directors ceasing toruenserving as directors.

In 2012 and 2011, no emoluments were paid by the Company td teydirectors as an inducement to join or upon joitliegcompany or as compensation for loss of office. In 2012 and
2011, no directors waived any emoluments.
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13. Directors’ remuneratiofcontinued)
(a) Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid or payable to independent non-executive dseaftite Company during the year were as follows:

Employee
settled share- Total
Salaries base payment remuneration
USD’000 UsD’000 UsD’000
2012
Tsuyoshi Kawanishi 45 15 60
Lip-Bu Tan 65 15 80
Frank Meng 52 40 92
162 70 232
Employee
settled share- Total
Salaries base payment remuneration
USD’000 USD’000 UsD’000
2011
Tsuyoshi Kawanishi 45 13 58
Lip-Bu Tan 60 13 73
Frank Meng 4 14 18
Jiang Shangzhou* 97 141 238
206 181 387
* Jiang Shangzhou passed away on June 27, 2011.
There were no other emoluments payable to the indeperatesixacutive directors during the year (2011: Nil).
(b) Executive directors and non-executive directors
Employee
Salaries settled share- Total
and wages base payment remuneration
USD’000 UsD’000 UsD’000
2012
Executive directors:
Zhang Wenyi 188 353 541
Tzu-Yin Chiu* 962 642 1,604
1,150 995 2,145

Non-executive directors:



Chen Shangzhi
Gao Yonggang
Lawrence Lau
Zhou Jie

Chen Datong

*

Tzu-Yin Chiu is also the Chief Executive Officer of tiompany.
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13. Directors’ remuneratiofcontinued)

(b) Executive directors and non-executive directorécontinued)

Employee
settled share- Total
Salaries base payment remuneration
USD’000 USD’000 USD’000
2011
Executive directors:
Zhang Wenyi 100 178 278
Tzu-Yin Chiu 154 261 415
David N.K. Wang* 601 478 1,079
855 917 1,772
Non-executive directors:
Chen Shanzhi 49 24 73
Gao Yonggang 49 24 73
Lawrence Lau — — —
Zhou Jie — — —
Chen Datong — — —
98 48 146

* David N.K. Wang ceased to be a director on June 29, 2011.
There was no arrangement under which a director waivadreed to waive any remuneration during the year.

14. Five highest paid employees

The five highest paid employees during the year included20il1: one) director, details of whose remunerationedreusin Note 13 above. Details of the remuneration afthmining
four (2011: four) non-directors, highest paid employees &ygtar are as follows:

Year ended Year ended
12/31/12 12/31/11
USD’000 USD’000
Salaries and other benefits 1,334 1,209
Bonus 16 690
Stock option benefits 521 543
1,871 2,442

The bonus is determined on the basis of the basic saldithe performance of the Company and the individual.

In 2012 and 2011, no emoluments were paid by the Company & theyfive highest paid employees as an inducemeoirt@j upon joining the Company or as compensation for loss of



office.
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14.

15.

Five highest paid employeésontinued)

The number of non-director, highest paid employees whaosgnezation fell within the following bands is as follows:

Number of employees

HK$2,000,001 ($257,441) to HK$2,500,000 ($321,800)
HK$2,500,001 ($321,801) to HK$3,000,000 ($386,160)
HK$3,000,001 ($386,161) to HK$3,500,000 ($450,520)
HK$3,500,001 ($450,521) to HK$4,500,000 ($514,880)
HK$4,500,001 ($579,241) to HK$5,000,000 ($643,600)
HK$5,000,001 ($643,601) to HK$5,500,000 ($707,960)

Earnings (loss) per share

Basic eamings (loss) per share
From continuing operations
From discontinued operations

Total basic earnings (loss) per share

Diluted earnings (loss) per share
From continuing operations
From discontinued operations

Total diluted earnings (loss) per share

Basic eamings (loss) per share
The earnings (loss) and weighted average number of oydihares used in the calculation of basic earningshaee sire as follows:

Profit (loss) for the year attributable to owners of thenany

Earnings (loss) used in the calculation of basic easr{iegs) per share
Profit for the year from discontinued operations used icdheulation of basic earnings per share from discatimperations

Earnings (loss) used in the calculation of basic easrings) per share from continuing operations

2012 2011
1 —_
1 —_
1 1
1 2
— 1
4 4
Year ended Year ended
12/31/12 12/31/11
UsD usD
0.00 (0.01)
— 0.00
0.00 (0.00)
0.00 (0.01)
— (0.00
0.00 (0.09)
Year ended Year ended
12/31/12 12/31/11
USD’000 USD’000
22,771 (246,817
22,771 (246,817)
— 14,741
22,771 (261,558

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpbbesic earnings (loss) per share

30,078,893,961

27,435,853,922
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15.  Earnings (loss) per shafeontinued)

Diluted earnings (loss) per share
The earnings (loss) used in the calculation of dilutediegs (loss) per share are as follows:

Year ended Year ended
12/31/12 12/31/11
USD’000 USD’000
Earnings (loss) used in the calculation of basic easHings) per share 22,771 (246,817)
Profit for the year from discontinued operations used icdheulation of diluted earnings (loss) per share frasndtitinued
operations — 14,741
Earnings (loss) used in the calculation of diluted egsn{toss) per share from continuing operations 22,771 (261,558

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the pugbasluted earnings (loss) per share reconciles tavéighted average number of ordinary shares used imalkbel&@tion of
basic earnings (loss) per share as follows:

Year ended Year ended
12/31/12 12/31/11
Weighted average number of ordinary shares used inlttdatéon of basic earnings (loss) per share 30,078,893,961 27,435,853,922
Employee option and restricted share units 64,712,749 —
Convertible preferred shares 1,899,048,145 —
Weighted average number of ordinary shares used inltdatéon of diluted earnings (loss) per share 32,042,654,855 27,435,853,922

As of December 31, 2012, the Company had 2,032,765,688 outstanding ergpdakesptions and warrants which were excluded froradhgputation of diluted earnings per share
because the exercise price was greater than the avesalget price of the common shares.

As of December 31, 2011, the Company had 3,057,405,086 employee stock opsbitted share units, warrants and convertiblieesl shares outstanding which were excluded from
the computation of diluted loss per share, as theirteffeald have been anti-dilutive due to the net loss repantée year ended December 31, 2011.

16. Assets classified as held for sale

12/31/12 12/3111 01/01/11
USD'000 USD'000 USD’000
Assets related to employee’s living quarters (i) 4,239 — —

(i) The Company is seeking to sell its self-constructé@ddiquarters to its employees.
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17.

Property, plant and equipment

Cost

Balance at January 1, 2011
Transfer from (out) CIP
Addition

Disposals

Write-off

Balance at December 31, 2011
Transfer from (out) CIP
Addition

Disposals

Reclassified as held for sale
Balance at December 31, 2012

Accumulated de pre ciationand impairment
Balance at January 1, 2011

Disposal

Write-off

Impairment losses recognized in profit or loss
Depreciation expense

Balance at December 31, 2011
Disposal

Depreciation expense

Reclassified as held for sale

Balance at December 31, 2012

Carrying value at January 1, 2011
Carrying value at December 31, 2011
Carrying value at December 31, 2012

Construction

Plant and Office in progress
Buildings equipment equipment (CIP) Total
USD’000 USD’000 USD’000 USD’000 USD’000
311,717 6,273,719 78,076 814,331 7,477,843
9,351 805,588 12,613 (827,552) —
— — — 727,576 727,576
(1,177) (75,593) (4,152) (2,352) (83,274)
— — — (87,359 (87,359
319,891 7,003,714 86,537 624,648 8,034,790
24,581 581,579 18,029 (624,189) —
— — — 409,750 409,750
(4,088) (7,918) (580) (142) (12,728)
(4,842 — (32 — (4,874
335,542 7,577,375 103,954 410,067 8,426,938
Plant and Office Construction
Buildings equipment equipment in progress Total
USD’000 USD’000 USD’000 USD’000 USD’000
77,949 4,873,172 72,507 102,352 5,125,980
(406) (52,448) (4,090) — (56,944)
— — — (87,355) (87,355)
— — — 17,691 17,691
11,833 501,683 5,324 — 518,840
89,376 5,322,407 73,741 32,688 5,518,212
(1,403) (4,850) (579) — (6,832)
12,903 509,962 8,958 — 531,823
(1,679 — (29) — (1,700
99,205 5,827,519 82,091 32,688 6,041,503
Plant and Office Construction
Buildings equipment equipment in progress Total
USD’000 USD’000 USD’000 USD’000 USD’000
233,768 1,400,547 5,569 711,979 2,351,863
230,515 1,681,307 12,796 591,960 2,516,578
236,337 1,749,856 21,863 377,379 2,385,435
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17.  Property, plant and equipmenbntinued)
Construction in progress
The construction in progress balance of approximately US$37llidnmas of December 31, 2012, primarily consisted of US$78.7amiind US$146.6 million of the manufacturing
equipment acquired to further expand the production capatditg 12" fab in Beijing and Shanghai, respectivelg, d8%$91.9 million related to the ongoing 8” wafer constructiofget at
Semiconductor Manufacturing International (Shenzhenp@ation, and US$60.2 million related to various ongoing abexpenditure projects of other subsidiaries, which isasgeo
be completed by the second half of 2013.
Impairment losses recognized in the year
The Company recorded an impairment loss of US$Nil (2011: US$illigninassociated with the disposal of Property, plant apdpenent with outdated technologies.
Assets pledged as security
Property, plant and equipment with carrying amount of apmeadzly US$993 million (2011: approximately US$482 million) havenb@edged to secure borrowings of the Company (see
Note 29). The plant and equipment have been pledged agystrusank loans under a mortgage. The Company is lawed to pledge these assets as security for other bogewirto

sell them to another entity.

18. Intangible assets

Acquired
intangible
assets
USD’000
Cost
Balance at January 1, 2011 236,691
Additions 37,490
Expired and Disposal (21,908
Balance at December 31, 2011 252,273
Additions 89,636
Balance at December 31, 2012 341,909
Accumulated amortization and impairment
Balance at January 1, 2011 62,870
Amortization expense for the year 31,450
Expired and Disposal (21,329
Balance at December 31, 2011 72,994
Amortization expense for the year 33,537
Balance at December 31, 2012 106,531
Carrying value at January 1, 2011 173,821
Carrying value at December 31, 2011 179,279

Carrying value at December 31, 2012 235,378
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19.

Subsidiaries

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries at the end of {mertiag period are as follows:

Name of company

Principal activity

Place of
establishment
and operation

Proportion of
ownership interest
and voting power
held by the Company

Better Way Enterprises Limited (“Better Way”")

Semiconductor Manufacturing International (Shanghai)
Corporation (“SMIS")#
SMIC, Americas

Semiconductor Manufacturing International (Beijing)
Corporation (“SMIB")#
SMIC, Japan

SMIC Europe S.R.L

Semiconductor Manufacturing International (Solar Cell)
Corporation

SMIC Commercial Shanghai Limited Company (formerly
SMIC Consulting Corporation)

Semiconductor Manufacturing International (Tianjin)
Corporation (“SMIT")#

Provision of marketing related
activities

Manufacturing and trading of
semiconductor products

Provision of marketing related
activities

Manufacturing and trading of
semiconductor products

Provision of marketing related
activities

Provision of marketing related
activities

Investment holding

Provision of marketing related
activities

Manufacturing and trading of
semiconductor products
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Samoa

People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC")

United States of America

PRC

Japan

ltaly

Cayman Islands

PRC

PRC

Directly
Directly
Directly
Directly
Directly
Directly
Directly
Directly

Directly

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%




19.

Subsidiariegcontinued)

Name of company

Principal activity

Place of
establishment
and operation

Proportion of
ownership interest
and voting power
held by the Company

SMIC Development (Chengdu) Corporation

Semiconductor Manufacturing International (BVI1)
Corporation (“SM IC (BVI)")

Admiral Investment Holdings Limited

SMIC Shanghai (Cayman) Corporation

SMIC Beijing (Cayman) Corporation

SMIC Tianjin (Cayman) Corporation

SilTech Semiconductor (Cayman) Corporation

SMIC Shenzhen (Cayman) Corporation

Brite Semiconductor Corporation*

SMIC Energy Technology (Shanghai) Corporation (“EnergyManufacturing and trading of

Science”)#

Magnificent Tower Limited
SMIC Shanghai (HK) Company Limited

Construction, operation, and
management of SMICD’s
living quarters, schools, and

supermarket

Provision of marketing related

activities
Investment holding
Investment holding
Investment holding
Investment holding
Investment holding
Investment holding
Investment holding

solar cell related

semiconductor products

Investment holding
Investment holding

PRC

British Virgin Islands

British Virgin Islands
Cayman Islands
Cayman Islands
Cayman Islands
Cayman Islands
Cayman Islands
Cayman Islands
PRC

British Virgin Islands
Hong Kong

Directly

Directly

Directly
Directly
Directly
Directly
Directly
Directly
Directly
Indirectly

Indirectly
Indirectly

100%

100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
44.2%
100%

100%
100%




19. Subsidiariegcontinued)

Place of Directly or indirectly
establishment owned Percentage of
Name of company Principal activity and operation ownership
SMIC Beijing (HK) Company Limited Investment holding Hong Kong Indirectly 100%
SMIC Tianjin (HK) Company Limited Investment holding Hong Kong Indirectly 100%
SMIC Solar Cell (HK) Company Limited Investment holding Hong Kong Indirectly 100%
SMIC (Wuhan) Development Corporation Construction, operation, PRC Indirectly 100%
management of living
quarters, schools

SMIC Shenzhen (HK) Company Limited Investment holding Hong Kong Indirectly 100%
SilTech Semiconductor (Hong Kong) Corporation Investment holding Hong Kong Indirectly 100%

Limited
Semiconductor Manufacturing International Manufacturing and trading of PRC Indirectly 100%

(Shenzhen) Corporation semiconductor products
SilTech Semiconductor Shanghai Corporation Manufacturing and trading of PRC Indirectly 100%

Limited semiconductor products
Brite Semiconductor Hong Kong Limited* Investment holding Hong Kong Indirectly 44.2%
Brite Semiconductor (Shanghai) Corporation* Design House PRC Indirectly 44.2%
# Abbreviation for identification purposes
* The Company consolidates Brite Semiconductor Corporation asabisédiaries (Brite) through controls gained through eotual agreement. The impact of consolidating of Brite

is insignificant to the financial statements of the@r@any.
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20.

Investments in associates

Details of the Company’s associates at the end o&therting period are as follows:

Place of
establishment

Proportion of

ownership interest and

voting power held by

the Company

Name of company Principal activity and operation 12/31/12 12/31/11
Toppan SMIC Electronic (Shanghai) Co., Ltd Design, production and processing Shanghai 30% 30%
micro lens imaging sensors and
related products
Zhongxin Xiecheng Investment (Beijing) Co., Ltd Equity investment, Project Beijing 49% —
investment, consulting
Summarized financial information in respect of the Comjgaagsociates is set out below.
Year ended Year ended
12/31/12 12/31/11
USD’000 USD’000
Total revenue 20,103 24,210
Total profit for the year 5,724 14,928
Company’s share of profits of associates 1,703 4,479
12/31/12 12/31/11
USD’000 USD’000
Total assets 69,374 54,470
Total liabilities (2,239 (1,618
Net assets 67,137 52,854
Company’s share of net assets of associates 21,636 15,856
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21.

Other financial assets

31/12/12 31/12/11 01/01/11
USD’000 USD’000 USD’000
Derivatives
Foreign currency forward contracts 77 939 695
Short-term investments carried at fair value through profit or loss 18,653 1,034 2,454
18,730 1,973 3,149
22.  Other assets

12/31/12 12/31/11 01/01/11

USD’000 USD’000 USD’000
Advance payments 28,252 31,816 —
Others 15,130 13,869 2,393
Non-current 43,382 45,685 2,393

In 2011, an advance of US$28 million was made in conjunctitmanproposed joint venture between the Company and Wuhgim $emiconductor Manufacturing Corporation

(“Xinxin™). This advance payment is refundable shoukljthint venture cannot be formed successfully.

In addition, an advance of US$3.9 million was made in 2011 to GmXgcheng Investment (Beijing) Corporation Limitedcionjunction with a joint venture between China Investmen
Corporation and the Company. The advance converted to caphel redw company after it was formed in 2012.

Available-for-sale investment of US$3.8 million as of Decanide 2012 and 2011, respectively, has been included as others.

23.  Inventories
12/31/12 12/31/11 01/01/11
USD’000 USD’000 USD’000
Raw materials 52,228 54,853 79,037
Work in progress 156,392 93,472 86,235
Finished goods 87,108 58,983 48,132
295,728 207,308 213,404
The cost of inventories recognized as an expense dbengéar in respect of inventory provision was US$30.9 milk&i{: US$26.1 million).
24.  Trade and other receivables
12/31/12 12/31/11 01/01/11
USD’000 USD’000 USD’000
Trade receivables 323,451 208,054 255,996
Allowance for doubtful debts (45,340 (42,820 (49,373
278,111 165,234 206,623




Other receivables and refundable deposits 50,100 35,671 57,425
328,211 200,905 264,048
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Trade and other receivablesntinued)

The Company determines credit terms ranging from 30 to 60fdagach customer on a case-by-case basis, bassdasaéssment of such customer’s financial standthpasiness

potential with the Company.

The Company determines its allowance for doubtful debtd@sthe Company’s historical experience and the relagjivey af receivables as well as individual assessmergrtdin
debtors. The Company’s allowance for doubtful debts egsludceivables from a limited number of customers dueitoHigh credit worthiness. The Company provides allow#mce
doubtful debts based on recoverable amount by making neéete the age category of the remaining receivablsubysequent settlement. The Company recognized U$4.6maitid

US$0.6 million of allowance for doubtful debts respectivelyrduthe year ended 31 December 2012 and 2011 respectivelgoftany reviews, analyzes and adjusts allowance for

doubtful debts on a monthly basis.

In evaluating the customers’ credit quality, the Corgpaed an internal system based on each customer’siopesiae, listing status, payment history and otheritgisde criteria. These

criteria are reviewed and updated annually. Based oresattiation, the Company believes the recoverability of thesaivables that are not impaired is reasonably assured.

Trade receivables

Of the trade receivables balance at the end of the y2@da and 2011, US$101.1 million and US$71.4 million respectargydue from the Company’s two largest customers.

Trade receivables disclosed above include amounts (see foelaged analysis) that are past due at the end ofytbetirgy period for which the Company has not recognizeallawance
for doubtful debts because there has not been a signifibange in credit quality and the amounts are stiliclered recoverable.

Age of receivables

Current

Past due but not impaired
Within 30 days

31—60 days

Over 60 days

Total

Average overdue days

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts

Balance at beginning of the year

Addition in allowance for doubtful debts

Amounts written off during the year as uncollectible
Reversal of allowance for doubtful debts

Balance at end of the year

12/31/12 12/31/11 01/01/11
UsD’000 UsD’000 UsD’000
222,765 134,958 174,380
31,219 26,468 25,395
16,559 1,083 3,033
7,568 2,725 3,815
278,111 165,234 206,623
47 31 37
12/31/12 12/31/11
USD’000 UsD’000
42,820 49,373
4,615 551
— (704)
(2,095 (6,400
45,340 42,820




In determining the recoverability of a trade receivabke Gbmpany considers any change in the credit qulitye trade receivable from the date credit was injtigdanted up to the end
of the reporting period.
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25.

Trade and other receivabl@ontinued)

Trade receivables(continued)

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts (continued)

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are indiviguahpaired trade receivables amounting to nil (DecerBiie2011: US$4.6 million) which have been placed under liquoidati
The impairment recognized represents the differencedaetthe carrying amount of these trade receivablethamesent value of the expected liquidation proceeds. dimpahy does

not hold any collateral over these balances.

Age of impaired trade receivables

12/31/12 12/31/11

USD’000 USD'000
Within 30 days 278 204
31—60 days 855 53
Over 60 days 44,207 42,563
Total 45,340 42,820

Restricted cash

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, restricted cash consisted dELUS#illion and US$46.3 million, respectively of bank time dépgsedged against letters of credit and short-term
borrowings, and US$106.0 million and US$90.6 million, respeltiof government subsidies received mainly for the reisgroent of research and development expenses to be incurred.
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26.

Shares and issued capital

Fully paid ordinary shares

Balance at January 1, 2011

Issue of shares under the Company’s employee share plain(see Note 33)
Balance at December 31, 2011

Issuance of shares under the Company’s employee gbtioa plan (see Note 33)
Conversion of convertible preferred shares

Balance at December 31, 2012

Fully paid ordinary shares, which have a par value §0UB04, carry one vote per share and carry a right to dividends.

Convertible preferred shares

Balance at January 1, 2011
Issue of shares

Balance at December 31, 2011
Converted into ordinary shares
Balanceat December 312012

In June 2011, the Company issued 360,589,053 non-redeemable ctewpeetibrred shares (the “Preferred Shares”) and aantgthe “CIC Warrant”) to subscribe for up to 72,117,810

Number of Share Share
shares capital pre mium
USD’000 USD’000
27,334,063,747 10,934 3,762,146
153,612,318 61 11,870
27,487,676,065 10,995 3,774,016
57,004,448 23 3,057
4,455,459,110 1,782 306,515
32,000,139,623 12,800 4,083,588
Number of Share Share
shares capital premium
USD’000 USD’000
445,545,911 178 308,119
445,545,911 178 308,119
(445,545,911 (178 (308,119

preferred shares, to Country Hill Limited, a wholly-owsethsidiary of China Investment Corporation (“CIC"), foremgregate proceeds of approximately $249 million, net chissu

cost of $0.6 million which was deducted from the carryage of the Preferred Shares.

In September 2011, the Company issued 84,956,858 preferred shiheed/arrant (the “Datang Warrant” and, together wigh@IC Warrant, the “Warrant”) to subscribe for up to
16,991,371 preferred shares, to Datang Holdings (Hongkong)rimgsCompany Limited (“Datang (Hongkong)”), for aggtegaroceeds of approximately $58.9 million.

The holders of the preferred shares had the right aira@yo convert their preferred shares into fully paid mady shares and the preferred shares have been madgpdatovierted into

ordinary shares at the conversion rate of 10 ordinarysipereconvertible preferred share. As of result of theersion, the Company issued 3,605,890,530 and 849,568,580 ordinary

shares to CIC and Datang (Hongkong), respectively, ma412012.
The Warrant to subscribe for convertible preferred shares éxpired without exercise.
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27.

Shares and issued capitabntinued)

Share options schemes

The Company has adopted the two share option schemesamdeioptions to subscribe for the Company’s shares havegbaeted to certain employees, officers and other service

providers (Note 33).
Reserves

Equity-settled employee benefits reserve

12/31/12 12/31/11

USD’000 USD’000
Balance at beginning of year 37,469 40,539
Arising on share-based payments 7,174 5,336
Transfer to share premium (2,41) (8,409
Balance at end of year 42,232 37,469

The above equity-settled employee benefits reserve relasbdite options granted by the Company to its employekeseavice providers under its employee share option pans It
included in equity- settled employee benefits reservenwtlbe reclassified subsequently to profit or lossthearinformation about share-based payments to emplopdeseavice

providers is set out in Note 33.
Foreign currency translation reserve

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

12/31/12 12/31/11

USD’000 USD’000
Balance at beginning of year 3,846 (1,092)
Exchange differences arising on translating the forepgrations 70 4,938
Balance at end of year 3,916 3,846

Exchange differences relating to the translatiah@fresults and net assets of the Company’s foreign apesd&tom their functional currencies to the Company'seniation currency (i.e.

United States dollars) are recognized directly in otbempeehensive income and accumulated in the foreign ayrteamnslation reserve. Exchange differences previaeiymulated in

the foreign currency translation reserve (in respétanslating both the net assets of foreign operatiot$i@dges of foreign operations) are reclassified to mofitss on the disposal of

the foreign operation.
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Accumulated deficit

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations egbplé to China’s foreign investment enterprise, the Cayp®RC subsidiaries are required or allowed to makeogptions to
non-distributable reserves. The general reserve fundrescainnual appropriation of 10% of after tax profit (as deted under accounting principles generally acceptéwiPRC at
each year-end), after offsetting accumulated losses ffrior years, until the accumulative amount of seskerve fund reaches 50% of registered capital of tegaet subsidiaries. The
general reserve fund can only be used to increasedis¢éered capital and eliminate future losses of theveait subsidiaries under PRC regulations. The stafaveeind bonus reserve is
determined by the board of directors of the respective PBSdiaries and used for the collective welfare of the emplofi¢he subsidiaries. The enterprise expansion resefgethe
expansion of the subsidiaries’ operations and can be codertapital subject to approval by the relevant authorifibese reserves represent appropriations of the retsdaneishgs
determined in accordance with Chinese law. In 2012 the Gonafdd not make any appropriation to non-distributable reseAsesf December 31, 2012 and 2011, the accumulated
non-distributable reserve was US$30 million and US$30 mitkspectively.

In addition, due to restrictions on the distribution of paidapital from the Company’s PRC subsidiaries, the PRGdiabigs’ paid-in capital of US$3,412 million at December Z112
is considered restricted.

As a result of these PRC laws and regulations, Beoémber 31, 2012, reserve and capital of approximately US$3iHi42 mas not available for distribution to the Company by its
PRC subsidiaries in the form of dividends, loans or advances.

In 2012, and 2011 the Company did not declare or pay any cash dwidethe ordinary shares.
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29. Borrowings

12/31/12 12/31/11 01/01/11
USD’000 USD'000 USD'000
At amortized cost
Short-term commercial bank loans (i) 383,225 607,427 372,055
383,225 607,427 372,055
Long-term debt by contracts
Shanghai USD & RMB loan — — 110,271
Beijing USD syndicate loan (ii) — 180,084 290,062
EUR loan (iii) — 8,271 25,422
Tianjin USD syndicate loan — — 86,300
Beijing USD & RMB loan (iv) 49,079 48,838 —
Shanghai USD loan (v) 68,500 26,523 —
Shanghai EXIM70M loan (vi) 70,000 — —
Shanghai 268M syndicate loan (vii) 245,611 — —
Beijing EXIM20M loan (viii) 20,000 — —
Beijing 600M syndicate loan (ix) 260,000 — —
713,190 263,716 512,055
Less: current maturities of long-term debt 184,578 191,355 333,459
Non-current maturties of long-term debt 528,612 72,361 178,596
Borrowing by repayment schedule:
Within 1 year 567,803 798,782 705,514
Within 1—2 years 309,000 72,361 178,596
Within 2—5 years 219,612 — —
1,096,415 871,143 884,110

Summary of borrowing arrange ments

(i)  As of December 31, 2012, the Company had 29 short-term agrdiements that provided total credit facilities ofaup/S$1 billion on a revolving credit basis. As of December 31,
2012, the Company had drawn down US$383.2 million under thesé¢ agesttments and US$629.3 million was available for futadérg and borrowings. The outstanding
borrowings under the credit agreements are unsecurexhtdac $129 million, which is secured by time deposits,d®5.9 million, which is secured by property with an ogagin
cost of US$2.1 million. The interest expense incurr&Dit? was US$22.2 million of which US$8.6 million was capitaliae additions to assets under construction. The intatest
ranged from 1.01% to 7.2% in 2012.
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29.

Borrowings(continued)

Summary of borrowing arrange ments(continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

In May 2005, Semiconductor Manufacturing InternationadijfiBg) Corporation (“SMIB”) entered into the Beijing DS&yndicate loan, a five-year loan facility in the aggtte
principal amount of US$600 million, with a syndicate of ficiahinstitutions based in the PRC. The principal arnauas repayable starting from December 2007 in six equal
semi-annual installments. On June 26, 2009, SMIB amehdesyhdicated loan agreement to defer the commencentbettbfee remaining semi-annual payments to Deced&her
2011. The amendment includes a provision for mandatory esgryment of a portion of the outstanding balance if SdMiiBancial performance exceeds certain pre-determined
benchmarks. The amendment was accounted for as a midifiaa the terms of the amended instrument wereubstantially different from the original terms. SMIRde the
repayment of remaining outstanding borrowing US$180.1 miihd012. The interest rate ranged from 2.94% to 2.99%.nt&eest expense incurred in 2012 was US$4.1 million,
of which US$1.0 million was capitalized additions to assedsmuconstruction in 2012.

The Beijing USD syndicate loan contained covenants totanaiminimum cash flows as a percentage of non-castmsgpeand to limit total liabilities, excluding shareholdans,
as a percentage of total assets. SMIB was in compliaitbehese covenants as of December 31, 2011. The lodrebadully repaid during 2012.

On December 15, 2005, the Company entered into a EUR deredrioag-term loan facility agreement in the aggrepétecipal amount of EUR85 million (equivalent to
approximately US$105 million) with ABN Amro Bank N.V,, Sigiai Branch. The drawdown period of the facility endedherearlier of (i) thirty six months after the exéoutof
the agreement or (ii) the date which the loans haea fully drawn down. Each draw-down made under the faeilis repaid in full by the Company in ten equal semisainn
installments. In May and June 2012, SMIS repaid theirénggbalance of EUR6.4 million. The interest rate ehfjom 2.6% to 4.7% in 2012. The interest expense incunred i
2012 was US$0.23 million of which US$0.09 million was capitalizititeons to assets under construction in 2012.

The loan has been fully repaid during 2012.

In September 2011, SMIB entered into the USD and RMB Laamp-year loan facility in the principal amount of$25 million and RMB150 million (approximately US$24
million) with The Export-Import Bank of China. This dayear bank facility was used for working capital purposssof December 31, 2012, SMIB had drawn down US$25
million & RMB150 million on this loan facility. The praipal amount is repayable in September 2013. The intextesbn this loan facility ranged from 6.15% to 6.65% in 2012.
The interest expense incurred in 2012 was US$3.2 milliomhih US$0.7 million was capitalized additions to assetemodnstruction in 2012.

The total outstanding balance of this USD & RMB Loaséasured by SMIB’s plant and equipment with an original 0bBIS$132.3 million as of December 31, 2012 (US$132.3
million as of December 31, 2011).
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29.  Borrowings(continued)
Summary of borrowing arrange ments(continued)

(V) In April 2011, SMIS entered into the Shanghai EXIM Bai@OJoan I, a new two-year loan facility in the pipa amount of $69.5 million with The Export-Import Bank of i&hi
This two-year bank facility was used to finance thenpdal expansion for SMIS’s 12-inch fab. As of December 31, 284S had drawn down US$69.5 million and repaid US$1
million. The principal amount of $68.5 million will be repdyje in June, 2013. The interest rate ranges from 4.4@% %86 during 2012. The interest expense incurred in 2012 was
US$3.4 million, of which US$1.1 million was capitalized aduisi to assets under construction in 2012.

The total outstanding balance of the facilities is smtby certain equipment of SMIS with an original codt$$ 99.6 million as of December 31, 2012 (US$38.6 million as of
December 31, 2011). The Shanghai EXIM Bank USD loan e@ntavenants to maintain certain minimum coverage radiS was in compliance with these covenants as of
December 31, 2012 and 2011 respectively.

(vi)  InOctober 2012, SMIS entered into the Shanghai EXIM RiSIR loan Il, a new two-year loan facility in the pripal amount of US$70 million with The Export-Import Bank of
China, which is secured by certain equipment of SMI& fto-year bank facility was used to finance the ptginexpansion for SMIS’s 12-inch fab. As of December 31, 2012,
SMIS had drawn down US$70 million. The principal amount ofi&iflBon will be repayable in October 2014. The interest iat4.55%. The interest expense incurred in 2012 was
US$0.4 million, of which US$0.1 million was capitalized adufitto assets under construction in 2012.

The Shanghai USD loan contains covenants to maintaeiceninimum coverage ratio. SMIS was in compliandth these covenants as of December 31, 2012.

(vii)  InMarch 2012, SMIS entered into a loan facility in tggragate principal amount of US$268 million from a consartéiinternational and Chinese banks. This three-yeal ba
facility is used to finance the working capital 8IS’s 8-inch fab. The facility is secured by the nfaoturing equipment located in the SMIS 8-inch fabanisl and land use right
of SMIS. As of December 31, 2012, SMIS had drawn down US$24iiién, on this loan facility. The principal amountrispayable from September 2013 to March 2015. The
interest rate on this loan facility ranged from 4.03% 24% in 2012. The interest expense incurred in 2012 was US$Tiéhnof which US$2.4 million was capitalized additions
to assets under construction in 2012. The Shanghai Uglicaye loan contains covenants to maintain certaimmimicoverage ratio. SMIS was in compliance with thesemants
as of December 31, 2012.

(viii)  In March 2012, SMIB entered into the new USD Loan, a te@xyorking capital loan facility in the principal amoahtJS$30 million with the Export-Import Bank of China,
which is unsecured. This two-year bank facility wasdur working capital purpose. As of December 31, 2012, SidtBdnawn down US$20 million on this loan facility. The
principal amount is repayable in March 2014. The intesgstan this loan facility ranged from 6.46% to 6.54% in 20h2. interest expense incurred in 2012 was US$1 million, of
which US$0.2 million was capitalized additions to aseetier construction in 2012.
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29.  Borrowings(continued)
Summary of borrowing arrange ments(continued)

(iX)  InMarch 2012, SMIB entered into the Beijing USD syntidaan, a seven-year loan facility in the aggregateimal amount of $600 million, with a syndicate of finaici
institutions based in the PRC. This seven-year bailkyagas used to expand the capacity of SMIB’s 12 indisfa he facility is secured by the manufacturing equipihogated in
the SMIB and SMIT fabs, and 100% equity pledge of SMIB avitTSAs of December 31, 2012, SMIB had drawn down US$260 mibiiothis loan facility which is repayable
from March 2014 to March 2016. The interest rate on thisfalhty ranged from 6.16% to 6.24% in 2012. The interestms@écurred in 2012 was US$12.2 million, of which
US$2.3 million was capitalized additions to assets undestemtion in 2012. The Beijing USD syndicate loan costaiovenants to maintain certain minimum coverage 18ktB
was in compliance with these covenants as of Decemb2032,

30. Trade and other payables
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12/31/12 12/31/11 01/01/11
USD’000 USD’000 USD’000
Trade payables 331,394 280,691 515,577
Advance receipts from customers 67,108 68,660 22,795
Deposit received from customer 10,591 5,631 64,445
Other payable 14,859 20,766 11,238
423,952 375,748 614,055
Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are norsediliyd on 30-day to 60-day terms.
An aging analysis of the accounts payable is as follows:
12/31/12 12/31/11 01/01/11
USD’000 USD'000 USD’000
Current 275,398 194,434 429,831
Overdue:
Within 30 days 26,783 42,278 42,087
Between 31 to 60 days 10,652 16,327 8,541
Over 60 days 18,561 27,652 35,118
331,394 280,691 515,577




31.

Promissory notes

In 2009, the Company reached a new settlement with TéB&aimconductor Manufacturing Corporation (“TSMC”). Undés igreement, the remaining promissory note of US$40l@mil
under the prior 2005 Settlement Agreement was cancelledCompany issued twelve non-interest bearing promisedeg with an aggregate amount of US$200.0 million as the
settlement consideration. The Company has recorded @udtsaf US$8.1 million for the imputed interest on the natsg an effective interest rate of 2.85% (whichespnts the
Company’s average rate of borrowing for 2009), which was decbas a reduction of the face amount of the promissory.rotmtal, the Company paid TSMC US$30.0 million and
US$30.0 million in 2012 and 2011, respectively. The outstaqomissory notes are as follows:

12/31/12
Discounted
Face value Value
USD’000 UsD’000
Maturity
2013——Current 30,000 29,374
30,000 29,374
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33.

Other financial liabilities

12/31/12 12/31/11 01/01/11
USD’000 USD’000 USD’000
Derivatives carried at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
Foreign currency forward contracts 25 816 480
Interest rate swaps — 405 1,380
Cross-currency interest rate swaps — 462 1,292
25 1,683 3,152

Share-based payments
Employee Stock Option Plans

The Company’'s employee stock option plans (the “Plans3jvathe Company to offer a variety of incentive awards to eygpl®) consultants or external service advisors of the Cgmpan
The options are granted at the fair market value aEtdmapany’s ordinary shares and expire 10 years from teeofigrant and vest over a requisite service period ofyfears.

The fair value of each option granted is estimated oddteof grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing indaking into account the terms and conditions upon whielshare options
were granted.

Restricted share units (“RSUs”)
The Company adopted the Equity Incentive Plan (“EIP”) whetiee Company provided additional incentives to the Compamg$ogees, directors and external consultants through the
issuance of restricted shares, restricted shareamdtstock appreciation rights to the participantseatlthcretion of the Board of Directors. The RSUs vest ovequaisite service period

of 4 years and expire 10 years from the date of grant.

The fair value of each option granted is estimated odate of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing madking into account the terms and conditions upon whielnstruments
were granted.

The expense recognized for employee services received theipgar is shown in the following table:

Year ended Year ended
12/31/12 12/31/11
USD’000 USD’000
Expense arising from equity-settled share-based payraestictions 7,174 5,336
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33.  Share-based paymeiitontinued)

Movements during the year

0] The following table illustrates the number and weidlaeerage exercise prices (WAEP) of, and movements irg sptions during the year (excluding RSUS):

2012 2012 2011 2011

Number WAEP Number WAEP
Outstanding at January 1 1,230,938,429 US$ 0.10 1,317,679,526 US$ 0.11
Granted during the year 292,084,956 US$ 0.04 321,290,693 US$ 0.07

Cancelled during the year (209,218,313) US$ 0.09 (332,650,148) US$ 0.11

Exercised during the year (28,437,70p US$ 0.02 (75,381,642 US$ 0.05
Outstanding at December 31 1,285,367,372 US$ 0.09 1,230,938,429 US$ 0.10
Exercisable at December 31 457,250,416 US$ 0.12 465,796,149 US$ 0.12

The weighted average remaining contractual life fossti@e options outstanding as at December 31, 2012 was 6r613@HL: 6.67 years).
The range of exercise prices for options outstandidwatnd of the year was US$0.02 to US$0.35 (2011: US$0.01 to US$0.35).

The following table list the inputs to the Black SclsoRricing models used for the option granted during thesyealed 31 December 2012 and 2011, respectively:

2012 2011
Dividend yield (%) — —
Expected volatility 65.93% 69.15%
Risk-free interest rate 0.77% 1.04%
Expected life of share options 1—5 years 1—5 years

The risk-free rate for periods within the contractifel bf the option is based on the yield of the US TreaBond. The expected term of options granted represemnetim of time
that options granted are expected to be outstanding. Expetédidities are based on the average volatility of the Cogpatock prices with the time period commensurate Viagh t
expected term of the options. The dividend yield is baseldeo@ampany’s intended future dividend plan.

The valuation of the options are based on the best estifrae&ompany by taking into account a number of assangpand subject to limitation of the valuation modelaiges in
variables and assumptions may affect the fair valuesggtioptions.
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33 Share-based paymeiftontinued)
Movements during the year(continued)

(i)  The following table illustrates the number and weidlagerage fair value (WAFV) of, and movements in, RSUsdtine year (excluding share options):

2012 2012 2011 2011
Number WAFV Number WAFV
Outstanding at January 1 101,564,432 US$ 0.07 144,457,562 US$ 0.10
Granted during the year 65,170,000 US$ 0.04 67,949,495 US$ 0.07
Cancelled during the year (12,809,396) US$ 0.08 (32,611,949) US$ 0.10
Exercised during the year (28,566,748 US$ 0.08 (78,230,676 US$ 0.10
Outstanding at December 31 125,358,288 US$ 0.06 101,564,432 US$ 0.07

The weighted average remaining contractual life folRB&s outstanding as at December 31, 2012 was 8.84 yeats 9201 years).
34. Disposal of a subsidiary

On March 1, 2011, the Company disposed of majority ownersteipest in Semiconductor Manufacturing Internationdl)(Borporation. No cash consideration received in conmeatith

this disposal.
Year ended

12/31/11

USD’000
Analysis of asset and liabilities over which control was lost
Cash and cash equivalents 3,861
Trade and other receivables 14,470
Inventories 5,210
Property, plant and equipment 29,263
Intangible assets 26
Trade and other payables (24,370)
Borrowings (300)
Deferred income (6,723
Net assets disposed of 21,437
Gain on disposal of subsidiary
10% investment retained 2,532
Cancellation of preferred shares 36,008
Net assets disposed of (21,437
Gain on disposal 17,103

The gain on disposal is included in the profit for the yie@mn discontinued operations (see Note 12).
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35.  Financial instruments
Capital management

The Company manages its capital to ensure that erititithe Company will be able to continue as goingeorcwhile maximizing the return to stakeholders tjindbe optimization of the
capital structure. The Company’s overall strategy resnamchanged from 2011.

The capital structure of the Company consists of net #ebtdwings as detailed in Note 29 offset by cash and baakd®) and equity of the Company.

Where the entity manages its capital through isguépgrchasing shares and raising/repayment of debt<Cdinpany reviews the capital structure on a semigdrasis. As part of this
review, the Company considers the cost of capital andske associates with each class of capital. The Compiriyalance its overall capital structure through thengent of
dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs as waliasue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

Gearing ratio

The gearing ratio at end of the reporting period was &sAfsl

12/31/12 12/31/11

USD’000 USD'000
Debt (i) 1,096,415 871,143
Cash and bank balances (358,490 (261,615
Net debt 737,925 609,528
Equity 2,276,452 2,245,998
Net debt to equity ratio 32.42% 27.1%%

(i) Debt is defined as long- and short-term borrowings (excludinyatives), as described in Note 29.
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35.

Financial instrumenté&ontinued)

Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets
Cash and bank balance
Restricted Cash (Deposit pledged against letters of &egfibrt-term credit facilities)
Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
Foreign currency forward contracts
Short-term investment carried at fair value through poofloss
Trade and other receivables
Available-for-sale financial assets carried at cost
Financial liabilities
Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
Foreign currency forward contracts
Interest rate swaps
Cross-currency interest rate swaps
Trade and other payables
Borrowings
Promissory notes
Long-term liabilities

Financial risk manage ment objectives

12/31/12 12/31/11
USD’000 uUSD’000
358,490 261,615
111,560 46,273
77 939
18,653 1,034
328,211 200,905
3,757 3,757
25 816
— 405
— 462
423,952 375,748
1,096,415 871,143
29,374 57,934
4,223 3,018

The Company’s corporate treasury function co-ordinates satge®mestic and international financial markets, mangod manages the financial risks relating to the tipasaof the
Company through internal risk reports which analyze expsswy degree and magnitude of risks. These risks inotadeet risk including currency risk, interest ragk and other price

risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Company seeks to minimise the effects of these bigkising derivative financial instruments to hedgk eixposures. The use of financial derivatives is govemdeiCompany’s
policies approved by the board of directors, which provideemrfitinciples on foreign exchange risk, interest riate credit risk, the use of financial derivatives aod-derivative
financial instruments, and the investment of exciegidity. Compliance with policies and exposure limits igieazed on continuous basis. The Company does not enteritiade

financial instruments, including derivative financiastruments, for speculative purposes.
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Financial instrumenté&ontinued)
Market risk

The Company’s activities expose it primarily to the fimahdsks of changes in foreign currency exchangesrahd interest rates. The Company enters into a vafiggrivative financial
instruments to manage its exposure to foreign curréskyand interest rate risk, including:

forward foreign exchange contracts to hedge the exchateeisk arising on the import from suppliers;
interest rate swaps to mitigate the risk of risitgriest rates; and

cross-currency interest rate swap agreements to pag@icist volatility of future cash flows caused by thengba in both interest rates and exchange rates assbuiith
outstanding long-term debt denominated in a currency titheithe US dollar.

Market risk exposures are measured using the sensdindlysis and the analysis in the following sectiahate to the position as at December 31, 2012 and 2011.
There has been no change to the Company’s exposure et miskk or the manner in which these risks are gahand measured.
Foreign currency risk manage ment

The Company undertakes transactions denominated in fangigmcies, consequently, exposures to exchangduetigations arise. Exchange rate exposures are mawdthatdapproved
policy parameters utilising forward foreign exchange remts.

The carrying amounts of the Company’s foreign currenogiginated monetary assets and monetary liabilities anithef the reporting period are as follows

Liabilities Assets
12/31/12 12/31/11 12/31/12 12/31/11
USD’000 USD’000 USD’000 USD’000
EUR 1,345 12,569 3,249 3,017
JPY 13,693 19,137 3,023 2,629
RMB 254,750 178,491 456,271 431,121
Others 6,934 7,797 2,122 1,630
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Financial instrumenté&ontinued)
Foreign currency risk manage ment(continued)
Foreign currency sensitivity analysis
The Company is mainly exposed to the currency of RMB,nkggaYen (“JPY”) and Euros (“EUR”).
The following table details the Company’s sensitivity & increase in the foreign currencies against USDréj¥esents management's assessment of the reaspoasillyle change in

foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysisudes only outstanding foreign currency denominated morigdans and adjusts their translation at the period end &6 change in
foreign currency rates. For a 5% decrease of the foceigancy against USD, there would be an equal and oppopiget on the profit or equity below predicted.

EUR JPY RMB Others
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
USD'000 USD'000 USD’000 USD’000 USD’000 USD'000 USD’000 USD’000
Profit or loss 95 (478) (562) (869) 10,606 13,296 3) (11)
Equity 95 (478) (562) (869) 10,606 13,296 3) (11)

Forward foreign exchange contracts

It is the policy of the Company to enter into forward fonesgchange contracts to cover specific foreign cagr@ayments and receipts within the exposure generatedCdmpany also
enters into forward foreign exchange contracts to neatiegforeign currency exposure from purchases/sateirancing activities.
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Financial instrumenté&ontinued)
Foreign currency risk manage ment(continued)
Forward foreign exchange contract&ontinued)
The following table details the forward foreign curre(fe€) contracts outstanding at the end of the reportiriggher

Outstanding contracts

Average exchange Fair value assets/
rate Foreign currency Notional value (liabilities)
12/31/12 12/31/11 12/31/12 12/31/11 12/31/12 12/31/11 12/31/12 12/31/11
FC'000 FC'000 UsD’000 UsD’000 UsD’000 UsD'000
Buy RMB
Less than 3 months 6.3763 6.5085 221,173 586,456 35,504 93,199 67 736
3 months to 1 year 6.4100 6.4450 294,696 426,592 47,306 67,794 (15 (525
515,869 1,013,048 82,810 160,993 52 211
Buy EUR
3 months to 1 year 1.3214 3,600 4,653 — (88)
3,600 4,653 — (88)

The Company does not enter into foreign currency exehemgiracts for speculative purposes.

Interest rate risk management

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk relates piyrt@the Company’s long-term debt obligations, whichGmmpany generally assumes to fund capital expenditudes arking
capital requirements. The risk is managed by the Conipamaintaining an appropriate mix between fixed andifigatite borrowings, and by the use of interest rate swafpacts and
Cross currency swap contracts.

The Company's exposures to interest rates on finaasg#ts and financial liabilities are detailed in thaidlity risk management section of this note.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined bagkel exposure to interest rates for both derivatives andi@awvative instruments at the end of the reporting pefod.
floating rate liabilities, the analysis is prepared absg the amount of the liability outstanding at the efithe reporting period was outstanding for the whole y&4a0 basis point

increase or decrease represents management's aggesfdtre reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 10 basis points higher adhelt variables were held constant, the Company's poofthé year ended December 31, 2012 would decrease by US$@é mill
(2011: loss increase by US$0.7 million). This is maittiytautable to the Company’s exposure to interest ratéts @ariable rate borrowings.
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Financial instrumenté&ontinued)
Interest rate risk management(continued)
Interest rate swap contracts
Under interest rate swap contracts, the Company agreashange the difference between fixed and floatimgingrest amounts calculated on agreed notional prirafpaunts. Such
contracts enable the Company to mitigate the risk afgihg interest rates on the fair value of issued fixge debt and the cash flow exposures on the issued vaidéblkdebt. The fair
value of interest rate swaps at the end of the reportimgdois determined by discounting the future cash flogsisgithe curves at the end of the reporting period arcréutt risk inherent
in the contracts, and is disclosed below. The averageesitrate is based on the outstanding balancesextdiaf the reporting period.

The following tables detail the notional principal amounis lemaining terms of interest rate swap contracttanting at the end of the reporting period.

Outstanding receive Average contracted Notional principal Fair value assets
floating pay fixed fixed interest rate value (liabilitie s)
contracts 12/31/12 12/31/11 12/31/12 12/31/11 12/31/12 12/31/11
% % USD’000 USD’000 USD’000 USD’000
Less than 1 year — 2.07 — 48,000 — (405)

The interest rate swaps settle on a semi-yearly bHsésfloating rate on the interest rate swaps isrigito 6 month Libor. The Company will settle the differebetween the fixed and
floating interest rate on a net basis.

Credit risk management

Credit risk refers to the risk that counterparty wilfaddt on its contractual obligations resulting irgfiicial loss to the Company. The Company is mainly exposaeédit risk from trade
receivables and deposits with banks and financial itietiti

Customer credit risk is managed by each businessulméct to the Company’s established policy, proceduresanitbtrelating to customer credit risk managemers. thé Company’s
policy that all customers who wish to trade on creins are subject to credit verification procedures aaftésed credit terms only with the approval from FinanceZailés Division.

Credit quality of a customer is assessed using publiclijedla financial information and its own trading recordsatte its major customers. The Company’s exposure adi cagngs of
its counterparties are continuously monitored. In aglditieceivable balances are monitored on an ongoing bahkitherresult that the Company’s exposure to bad delbitst significant.

Trade receivables consist of a large number of custos@esad across diverse industries and geographical areas.
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Financial instrumenté&ontinued)
Credit risk manage ment(continued)

Apart from A and B, two largest customers of the ComptheyCompany does not have significant credit risk expdsuaBy single counterparty or any group of counterpanagesg
similar characteristics. The Company defines counteégsaats having similar characteristics if they atateel entities. Concentration of credit risk related tind B did not exceed 10%
and 12% of gross monetary assets at the end of currenCggeentration of credit risk to any other counterpdidynot exceed 5% of gross monetary assets at the end-eficyear.

Net revenue and accounts receivable for customers wticthiated for 10% or more of the Company’s accounts receiaableet sales is disclosed in Note 7.

The credit risk on liquid funds and derivative financratiuments is limited because the counterparties aies lpéth high credit-ratings.

Liquidity risk management

The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adegcash reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrdagiigies, by continuously monitoring forecast and actzdh flows,
and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assed liabilities.

Liquidity and interest risk tables

The following tables detail the Company’s remaining catiid maturity for its non-derivative financial liabiéis with agreed repayment periods. The tables have been dpavased on
the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilitiesdxhen the earliest date on which the Company can be edduipay. The tables include both interest and princifsdl ft@ws. To the
extent that interest flows are floating rate, the smolinted amount is derived from interest rate curveg atrith of the reporting period. The contractual maturibased on the earliest date
on which the Company may be required to pay.

Weighted
average
effective
interest Less than 3 months
rate 3 months to 1 year 1—5 years 5+ years Total
% USD’000 USD’000 USD'000 USD'000 USD’000
31 December 2012
Promissory notes — 30,000 — — 30,000
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings  Fixed 4.73% — 392,282 — — 392,282
Floating 5.64% — 189,786 588,270 — 778,056
Long-term financial liabilities — — 6,750 — 6,750
Trade and other payables 353,009 62,120 8,823 — 423,952

353,009 674,188 603,843 — 1,631,040
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Financial instrumenté&ontinued)

Liquidity risk management (continued)
Liquidity and interest risk tablegcontinued)

Weighted
average
effective Less than 3 months
interest rate 3 months to 1 year 1—5 years 5+ years Total
% USD’000 USD'000 USD’000 USD’000 USD'000
31 December 2011
Promissory notes — 30,000 30,000 — 60,000
Interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings Fixed 3.60% — 618,364 — — 618,364
Floating 3.46% — 194,665 77,368 — 272,033
Long-term financial liabilities — — 6,750 — 6,750
Trade and other payables 322,528 47,407 5,813 — 375,748
322,528 890,436 119,931 — 1,332,895

The following table details the Company’s expected matfoitits non-derivative financial assets. The tablelieen drawn up based on the undiscounted contractual reatofithe
financial assets including interest that will berear on those assets. The inclusion of information on nowadige financial assets is necessary in order to staed the Company’s
liquidity risk management as the liquidity is manage met asset and liability basis.

Weighted
average
effective
interest Less than 3 months
rate 3 months to 1 year 1—5 years 5+ years Total
% USD'000 UsD’000 USD'000 UsD’000 USD'000
31 December 2012
Trade and other receivables 322,380 5,831 — — 328,211
Cash balances, restricted cash & short-term
investments 1.3%% 414,798 75,108 — — 489,906
Available for sale financial assets — — — 3,757 3,757
737,178 80,939 — 3,757 821,874
Weighted
average
effective Less than 3 months
interest rate 3 months to 1 year 1—5 years 5+ years Total
% USD'000 UsD’000 USD'000 UsD’000 USD'000
31 December 2011
Trade and other receivables 195,953 4,952 — — 200,905



Cash balances, Restricted Cash & short-term

investments 0.91% 265,773 43,647 — — 309,420
Available for sale financial asset — — — 3,757 3,757
461,726 48,599 — 3,757 514,082
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Financial instrumenté&ontinued)

Liquidity risk management (continued)
Liquidity and interest risk tableg¢continued)

The amounts included above for variable interest rateumetits for both non-derivative financial assets and Itedslis subject to change if changes in variable ésterates differ to
those estimates of interest rates determined at thef¢mel reporting period.

The Company has access to financing facilities as idbestin below section, of which USD629.3 million were unwusieitie end of the reporting period (2011: USD311.6 milliohg T
Company expects to meet its other obligations from operedisig flows and proceeds of maturing financial assets.

The following table details the Company’s liquidity anadyfair its derivative financial instruments. The table haen drawn up based on the undiscounted contractaasteinflows and
outflows on derivative instruments that settle on dasts, and the undiscounted gross inflows and outflowisose terivatives that require gross settlement. Wieesrtiount payable or
receivable is not fixed, the amount disclosed has beemdaed by reference to the projected interest ratdiiasated by the yield curves at the end of the repgériod.

Less than 1—3 3 months
1 month 1 month months to 1 year 1—5 years 5+ years
USD'000 USD’000 USD'000 USD’000 USD’000 USD’000
31 December 2012
Net settled:
— foreign exchange forward Contracts — 20 47 (15 — —
— 20 47 (15 — —
31 December 2011
Net settled:
— Interest rate swaps — — — (405) — —
— foreign exchange forward contracts — 712 24 (613) — —
— cross-currency interest rate swap contracts — — — (462 — —
— 712 24 (1,480 — —

Fair value of financial instruments
Fair value of financial instruments carried at amortized cost

The Company considers that the carrying amounts of fimaassets and financial liabilities recognized indbasolidated financial statements approximate theivdires.

The carrying values of long-term promissory notes approgithair fair values as the interest rates used todisthe promissory notes did not fluctuate significaotiiween the date the
notes were recorded and December 31, 2012.
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35. Financial instrumen{sontinued)

Fair value of financial instruments (continued)
Valuation techniques and assumptions applied for the purposes of méagdair value

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabs are determined as follows:

the fair value of financial instruments based on quoiadkeh prices in active markets, valuation techniqueau@observable market-based inputs or unobservable inguseha
corroborated by market data. Pricing information the Cognphtains from third parties is internally validated faagenableness prior to use in the consolidated finanaetehsnts.
When observable market prices are not readily availdi@eCdmpany generally estimates the fair value usingtiah techniques that rely on alternate market datepats that are

generally less readily observable from objective sourcesrargstimated based on pertinent information availaliteatme of the applicable reporting periods. In certases,

fair values are not subject to precise quantification dfigation and may fluctuate as economic and market fastary and the Company’s evaluation of those factors changes

Fair value measurements recognized in the consolidated statarof financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financialrunsents that are measured subsequent to initial reogat fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on theeddo which the

fair value is observable:

Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from qoiitas (unadjusted) in active markets for identical tasseliabilities;

Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived fronsioghér than quoted pries included within Level 1 thabaservable for the asset or liability, either direadtly.(as

prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and

Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived fromtiadachniques that include inputs
for the asset or liability that are not based on observaatket data (unobservable inputs).

31/12/12
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
USD'000 USD’000 USD'000 USD’000
Financial assets at FVTPL
Derivative financial assets — 77 77
Short-term investment carried at fair value through poofloss — 18,653 18,653
Total — 18,730 18,730
Financial liabilities at FVTPL
Other derivative financial liabilities — (25 (25
Total — (25) (25)
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Financial instrumenté&ontinued)

Fair value of financial instruments (continued)
Fair value measurements recognized in the consolidated statgrmf financial position(continued)

31/12/12
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
USD'000 USD'000 USD'000 USD’000
Financial assets at FVTPL
Derivative financial assets 939 939
Short-term investment carried at fair value through poofloss 1,034 1,034
Total 1,973 1,973
Financial liabilities at FVTPL
Other derivative financial liabilities (1,683 (1,683
Total (1,683 (1,683

There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 duringeyeted December 31, 2012 and 2011.

Related party transactions

Balances and transactions between the Company asubg&liaries, which are related parties of the Copawve been eliminated on consolidation and are not destioghis note.

Details of transactions between the Company and otleedegbarties are disclosed below.

Trading transactions

During the year, group entities entered into the follgatrading transactions with related parties that arenembers of the Company:

Datang Microelectronics Technology Co., Ltd**
Toppan SMIC Electronics (Shanghai) Co., Ltd
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Sales of goods

Year ended Year ended
12/31/12 12/31/11
USD’000 USD’000

9,654 4,558
4,192 4,099




36. Related party transactiofsontinued)

Trading transactions (continued)

Purchase of goods Purchase of services
Year Year Year Year
ended ended ended ended
31/12/12 31/12/11 31/12/12 31/12/11
UsD’000 USD’000 USD’000 USD’000
Toppan SMIC Electronics (Shanghai) Co., Ltd 169 6,828 12,755 13,594
Zhongxin Xiecheng Investment (Beijing) Co., Ltd — — 1,094 —
The following balances were outstanding at the end aktherting period:
Amounts owing by Amounts owing to
related parties related parties
12/31/12 12/31/11 12/31/12 12/31/11
UsD’000 UsD’000 USD’000 USD’000
Datang Microelectronics Technology Co., Ltd** 4,138 1,261 — —
Datang Telecom Company Finance Co., Ltd** — — 80,262* —
Toppan SMIC Electronics (Shanghai) Co., Ltd 372 350 1,487 1,629

* Short-term borrowing, the principal amount is repayabiday 2013. The interest rate is 5.04%.

** Members of Datang Group.

On December 14, 2011, the Company entered into a Framewekment with Datang Telecom Technology & Industry HggliCo., Ltd. (“Datang”), a substantial shareholdehef
Company. Datang is a member of Datang Telecom Technoldggu&try Group (“Datang Group”). Pursuant to the ageegnthe Company (including its subsidiaries) and Daiaotuding
its associates) will engage in business collaboratidnding but not limited to foundry service. The effectpegiod of the Framework Agreement is three years. Tieengrfor the
transactions contemplated under the agreement will bendesel by reference to reasonable market price.
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Related party transactidpsntinued)
Compensation of key management personnel

Key management personnel are those persons having augtmatitesponsibility for planning, directing and contrgjithe activities of the Company, directly or indirgcihcluding
directors of the Company.

The remuneration of key management personnel duringtieare as follows:

year ended year ended
12/31/12 12/31/11
UsD’000 USD’000
Short-term benefits 3,191 3,222
Share-based payments 1,343 1,619
4,534 4,841

The remuneration of key management personnel is detsirbly the Compensation Committee having regard to the parfoenof individuals and market trends.
The Board approved to sell self-developed apartment to two oéyhednagement in 2012. Amount of sales of self-developethamts was US$0.9 million.

99




37.  Commitments for expenditure
Purchase commitments

As of December 31, 2012, the Company had the following comminepurchase machinery, equipment and construction obligairhe machinery and equipment is scheduled to be
delivered to the Company’s facility by December 31, 2013.

12/31/12 12/31/11

USD’000 USD'000
Commitments for the facility construction 25,551 40,322
Commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and egeim 481,639 420,461
507,190 460,783

38.  Approval of financial statements
The financial statements were approved and authorizesisiae by the board of directors on March 25, 2013.
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Share Capital

On June 4, 2012, all 360,589,053 convertible preferred shared tesDeuntry Hill Limited (“CHL") and all 84,956,858 convertiblesferred shares issued to Datang Holdings (Hongkong)
Investment Company Limited (“Datang (Hongkong)”) wer@ndatorily converted into ordinary shares of the Compamd{@ry Shares”) at the conversion rate of 10 Ordinaar&s per
convertible preferred share. As a result of the converierGompany issued 3,605,890,530 and 849,568,580 Ordinary Shares andCBatang (Hongkong), respectively, on June 4, 2012,

During the year ended December 31, 2012, the Company issé&® P80 Ordinary Shares to certain of the eligible participacksding employees, directors, officers, and service pleygi of
the Company (“eligible participants”) pursuant to the Camiga2004 Stock Option Plan (2004 Stock Option Plan”), 28,5@Jrlinary Shares to certain of the eligible particippotsuant to
the Company’s amended and restated 2004 Equity Incentive"P0@4 (Equity Incentive Plan”), and 11,798,500 Ordinary Sharesrtain of the eligible participants pursuant to the Gamyis
2001 Stock Plan.

During the year ended December 31, 2012, the Company didmothase any shares from eligible participants pursu#re terms of the Company’s 2001 Preference Shavek Bian and
2001 Regulation S Preference Shares Stock Plan (collgdtree’2001 Preference Shares Plan”) or the Company’s 2@@k Blan.

Number of
Shares
Outstanding Share Capital as at December 31, 2012: Outstanding
Ordinary Shares 32,000,139,623

Under the terms of the 2004 Equity Incentive Plan, thepg@osation Committee of the Company may grant restréttace units (“Restricted Share Units”) to eligibletiggzants. Each Restricted
Share Unit represents the right to receive one OrdBlaaye. Restricted Share Units granted to new emplopde=xisting employees generally vest at a rate of 25% thpdirst, second, third,
and fourth anniversaries of the vesting commencementldad® vesting of the Restricted Share Units and sutgjebe terms of the Company’s Insider Trading Policytaachayment by the
participants of applicable taxes, the Company will issubd relevant participants the number of Ordinary Shawsrlying the awards of Restricted Share Units. Foyehe ended

December 31, 2012, the Compensation Committee granted aft6&ll 70,000 Restricted Share Units.
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The remaining vesting dates of the Restricted Sharts granted (after deducting the number of RestrictedeSbiits granted but cancelled due to the departuregibliparticipants prior to

vesting) approximately are as follows:

Vesting Dates

Approximate no. of Restricted Share Units (the actal
number of shares eventually to be issued may changee
to departure of eligible participants prior to vesing)

2012
1-Jan
21-Jan
29-Jan
1-Feb
4-Feb
13-Feb
16-Feb
23-Feb
12-Mar
31-Mar
22-May
24-May
30-Jun
5-Aug
27-Oct
2013
1-Jan
23-Feb
31-Mar
1-May
24-May
30-Jun
9-Jul
5-Aug
2014
1-Jan
23-Feb
31-Mar
1-May
24-May
30-Jun
9-Jul
5-Aug
2015
1-Jan
1-May
30-Jun

14,320,699
200,000
75,000
483,393
1,679,399
75,000
75,000
8,396,994
125,000
125,000
8,750
1,684,992
2,330,023
9,320,093
50,000

7,556,546
1,679,398
125,000
14,850,000
1,684,992
2,330,023
625,000
9,320,093

7,556,583
1,679,399
125,000
14,850,000
1,684,993
2,330,023
625,000
9,320,093

3,893,759
14,850,000
2,330,024



9-Jul
5-Aug
2016
30-Apr
9-Jul
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625,000
9,320,093

14,850,000
625,000




Repurchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s Listeditte=cu
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries hagcbpsed, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s OrdinargsStiaring the year ended December 31, 2012.
Corporate Governance Practices

The HKSE’s Code of Corporate Governance Practices (thendfdCG Code”) which was subsequently revised as the Gaego@overnance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appeddik 1
the Listing Rules, which contains code provisions to whitkssuer, such as the Company, is expected to comptivie as to reasons for deviations (the “Code Provisiond)emommended
best practices which anissuer is encouraged to impldtheriiRecommended Practices”). The Corporate Goverrioley of the Company came into effect on January 285 2@ter approval
by the Board (and was subsequently updated by the Boardyd@6J@005 and April 24, 2009, November 7, 2011 and March 23, 2012¢tigsp@ (the “CG Policy”). The CG Policy, which is
available on the Company’s website at www.smics.com uthalegstor Relations > Corporate Governance > Policy and Bupes”, incorporates all of the Code Provisions except fagpaph
E.1.3 which relates to the notice period for generalingebf the Company, and many of the Recommended Pradticlition, the Company has adopted or put in place vapiaises,
procedures, and practices in compliance with the provisiahe &G Policy.

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, the Company iawetre of any non-compliance with the Code Provisions dfdinmer Code and of the new CG Code effective from April 12201
during the year ended December 31, 2012.
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Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors ottisssuers

The Company has adopted an Insider Trading Compliance Rréipa“Insider Trading Policy”) which encompasses éwirements of the Model Code as set out in Appendix Igedfisting
Rules (the “Model Code”). The Company, having made sgeeffguiry of all Directors, confirms that all Directdrave complied with the Insider Trading Policy andvibelel Code throughout
the year ended December 31, 2012. The senior manageni@Cafmpany as well as all officers, Directors, angdleyees of the Company and its subsidiaries are also redoicednply with
the provisions of the Insider Trading Policy.

REVIEW BY AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Company has reviewed witmaivagement of the Company, the accounting principlepramtices accepted by the Company and has discussetevidiréctors
matters concerning internal controls and financial riempof the Company, including a review of the auditedrional statements of the Company for the year endegiiger 31, 2012.

ANNUAL REPORT

The Annual Report for the year ended December 31, 2012 willitdéshed on the website of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kionited (http://www.hkex.com.hk) as well as the wighsf the
Company (www.smics.com) and will be dispatched to sharelotiféhe Company in due course.

As at the date of this announcement, the Director&tsarg Wenyi as Chairman of the Board of Directors amtiikve Director of the Company; Tzu-Yin Chiu as Chieédtitive Officer and
Executive Director; Chen Shanzhi, Gao Yonggang, Laverdnen-Yee Lau (Datong Chen as his Alternate) and Zieoas Non-Executive Directors of the Company; and Taul@svanishi,
Frank Meng and Lip-Bu Tan as Independent Non-ExecutivecRirs of the Company.

By order of the Board
Semiconductor Manufacturing Inte rmational
Corporation
Dr. Tzu-Yin Chiu
Chief Executive Officer
Executive Director

Shanghai, PRC, March 25, 2013

* For identification only
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